Convention
Arena

Authority

Steven Heacock,
Chairman

Birgit Klohs

Clif Charles

Gary Mclnerney

<

George Heartwell

Joseph Tomaselli

Lew Chamberlin

/':'lln. Ix

\’I\N ANDEL

ARENA

<

§ 5

Yan Andel Arena®
130 Fulton West

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

ON VENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT CONVENTION. 5H

Call to Order

Board of Directors

Wednesday, February 28, 2007
8:00 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe Avenue, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA

Presentation on Diversity Management + Community
Outreach Initial Report — Rev. Joe Jones & Skot Welch

Approval of January 24, 2007, Minutes

Information

Action

Committee Reports
a. Operations Committee
i Committee Report

ii. CVB Report

b. Finance Committee

Information
Information

i

ii.
iii.

iv.

SMG January 2007 Financial Statements -

DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

CAA January 2007 Financial Statements
Recommendation to Co-Promote Thomas the Tank
Engine Family Show at DeVos Performance Hall
SMG Food & Beverage January 2007

Action

Action
Action

Information

Revenue and Commission Report
Recommendation on Wine & Food Festival
SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
Public Comment
Next Meeting Date: Wednesday, March 28, 2007

Adjournment

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2601

616.742.6600
Fax 616.742.6197

Grand Rapids, MI 49503-

Action

Information

»EYOSPLACE

DeVos Pla
303 Monroe Ave. N

ce®

[ ]

23

223
616.742.650
2.659

Fax 616.74
M

OO w



Item 11

Kent County Convention and Arena Authority
Diversity Management + Community Outreach Initiative

Initial Report from:

LT SIRATEGIC
. COMMUNICATIONS
° GROUP e
® DIV ERSITY
. MARAGEMENT STRATEGISTS
. e

Diversity Management Strategists (DMS) & Strategic Communications Group (SCG)
1/31/07

African American Focus Group
Goals

The goals for the Diversity Management + Community Outreach Initiative are to design and
develop an ethnically focused programming/community outreach plan and establish intemal
diversity practices for long term revenue gain.

Based on these goals, initial work has concentrated so far on obtaining community input on key

issues about the SMG-managed, heretofore referred to as VAA + DPH.

uan: Input—Dive Management Assessment
Diversity Process Assessment (DPA) to be completed by 3/07
Qualitative Input—Focus Group Process and Results

In December 2006, Skot Welch of DMS and Joe Jones of SCG conducted two focus groups
comprised of identified African American community leaders ages 18-25 years old (December
19) and 28-55 years old (December 21).

In each focus group, these questions were asked:

e What means of communication with the African-American community in Grand Rapids is
most effective?

¢  What are the “hubs” in the African-American community in Grand Rapids?

e What marketing ideas do you have for entertainment offered at the VAA + DPH venues?
¢ What acts do you want to see?

o Describe your experiences at VAA + DPH functions?

e What needs to change?

[

What are you willing to pay for specific acts?



Responses were recorded during each focus group and are reported in the Focus Group Data,
attached. In the future, this data would be particularly important to review directly by those
addressing specific topics, like marketing strategies and possible events. The data is not
repeated in this report in detail but is summarized to illustrate the themes identified.

Findings—Key Themes:

Community collaborations should be developed with VAA + DPH visiting acts to benefit
children.

Both groups emphasized that partnerships should be created that would ensure that,
where possible and desirable, VAA + DPH events benefit children through special urban
school programs and neighborhood events. Feedback alluded to potential ethnic
entertainment partnerships with other organizations as well for the benefit of children.

The “not for me” phenomenon in Grand Rapids’ downtown entertainment must be
addressed.

The groups registered a sense in the African-American community that downtown events
are “not for me.” Possible causes and strategies to address them are discussed below.

A more complete entertainment experience needs to be developed downtown.

Both groups strongly registered the need for a more complete “ethnic entertainment
experience” in the area around the arena which would address broader and more
diverse communities through eating and nightlife activities. They also remarked that this
experience needed to respond to all age and ethnic groups. This could include a special
ethnic entertainment district surrounding the arena and partnerships with area
businesses to appeal to ethnic markets.

The Grand Rapids entertainment environment needs to become more welcoming.

One of the groups asked whether the new GR marketing strategy, “Keep it a secret,”
sends the message that we are ready and eager to welcome diverse entertainment and
culture and their audiences. How does that strategy “fit into” a potential “ethnic” marketing
strategy? The younger focus group noted that Grand Rapids needs to be presented as a
more cosmopolitan and inclusive community.

The atmosphere at VAA + DPH has been positive, but needs to become more welcoming.

The younger focus group members generally seemed to register more positive
experiences at the two venues in the past. The primary difference between the younger
and older focus group members seemed to be in whether they felt valued as customers.
Younger members did suggest a need for more diversity in the “face” of the arena, with
more employees and vendors of color. They also suggested that more cultural awareness
be cultivated among arena staff.

Articulation of expectation of audience etiquette

it was also suggested by older focus group members that the experience at the arena
could be improved if the expectations for audience behavior on the part of the African-
American community were higher and communicated to potential audiences, especially
with regard to the suitability of events for young children, using assigned seating, and
extending courtesy to other attendees with timely arrivals.



Communication channels should be developed that are appropriate for the anticipated
audiences.

It is important to recognize that younger and older focus group members differ to some
extent in the communication channels they identified. These are listed in the Focus Group
Data attached. Note that younger members added the use of email, cell phones (text
messaging), and on-line web presence. Data from both groups should also be considered
in identifying “community hubs” since they differ.

A high quality partnership should be developed between the Convention Arena Authority
and the African-American community.

This partnership needs to include a strategy for identifying and recruiting more people of
color for inclusion on the CAA board, more employees of color in leadership and
management positions at the CAA, paid intemships in arena/convention/entertainment-
related careers for young people of color, other opportunities for career development, and
a more inclusive base of suppliers.

Strategles need to be developed to enhance the affordability of arena events.

The younger members of the focus groups seemed more confident in the willingness and
ability of the African-American community to afford ticket prices ranging from $45-75. Older
members were concemed about prices above $65. Both groups agreed that strategies
were needed to ensure the affordability of the events. These included: sponsorships that
would permit ticket prices to be set lower; complimentary and discount tickets for schools;
ticket giveaways and discounts; and participation of suite holders in a program to provide
free or low-cost tickets. Another viable opportunity that was suggested is for the
‘packaging’ of all-inclusive evenings where the ticket price included dinner before the event
and desert after the event.

Suggestions for events and entertainers are wide ranging.

The older focus group members seemed comfortable in suggesting that programming
should be selected based on the “existing culture® of the community, which they
characterized as “conservative and faith-based,” with more “crossover crowd
performers.” Their suggested acts are listed in the Focus Group Data. Younger focus
group members included some of the specific suggestions offered by the other group,
but provided an expanded list. In terms of criteria for selecting events, they included
special events for young people, niche markets, and community-minded acts that visit
schools and neighborhoods.

Marketing strategies need to emphasize quality programming, affordability and
partnerships.

All of these strategies have been touched upon previously in this report. In addition,
strategies offered included expanded and effective “street teams,” incentive payments to
groups and businesses for distributing information and selling tickets, Boston Square Shell
Gas Station promotion, and the “reinvention of the philosophy of entertainment” in Grand
Rapids.



Item 11

STRATEGIC
COMMUNICATIONS
GROUP uc

DIVERSITY
. MARACEREND STRATECISES
“so0®

Convention Center and Van Andel Arena Focus Groups — 12/19/06
Focus Group Demographic: African Americans, 18-35 years old

hat means of communications is mo; ive?

My Space Page - online

Email invites

Cell phones - Text messaging
Word of mouth

Flyers

Posters

Billboards (location is key)

Hair salons/Barber shops

Grand Rapids Times

Churches

Sports bars

Street corners

Party stores

Burton & Eastern

Cross promotion with other venues (Restaurants, malls, etc)
Through sororities and fraternities

Hubs in the Community

Southern Fish Fry

Wing Heaven

Orbit Room

Chicken Coop

Drink Ultra Lounge

Grand Valley State University
Grand Rapids Community College
Hispanic Chamber of Commerce
Reflections

Ernie’s Barber Shop

Dept. of Human Services

Meijer on 28" & Kalamazoo
So-So’s on Division/Wealthy
BW-3



Marketing Ideas

Need an aggressive Street Team

Getting community involved with events

Working with local promoters who the community knows

All local churches getting together to sing at the Van Andel

Consistency in top-notch entertainment

Complimentary tickets or discounted tickets for schools

Realize that ethnic markets are untapped markets and that they have a lot of buying
power

Adbvertise on 1140 AM, 640 AM and with Grand Rapids Times

(1] to

Children’s shows
-Nickelodeon

-Dora the Explorer
-Veggie Tales

Beyonce’ & The Pussy Cat Dolls
Genre packages — Jill Scott, India. Arie and Erykah Badu
Daddy Yankee

Local Acts — Al Green and Adina Howard from Grand Rapids
Pit Bull

TIL

Sade

Old School Soul

-Frankie Beverly & Maze
-New Edition

-Guy

More boxing events

Def Poetry Slam

Jazz shows

Multicultural acts

Holy Hip Hop
Motivational speakers
-Joyce Meyer

-TD Jakes

-Tony Evans

Hair show

Stomp

Brian McKnight
Well-traveled shows

Off Broadway shows
Gospel

-Fred Hammond
-Yolanda Adams
Mariachi bands
Educational events



-Hip Hop Summit
Comedians

Savion Glover

UniverSoul Circus

Rodeo

Dub Car Shows

Ethnic Conventions

Taste of Grand Rapids (Similar to The Taste in Chicago)
Black Lawyers Convention
Health summits

AIDS Quilt

BET personalities

Holy Hip Hop shows

Describe experience at Van Andel functions

Great

Friendly

Lack of diversity with employees and vendors

Rushed

Isolated entertainment (No other ethnic entertainment in downtown)
Employees may need more cultural awareness

What needs to change

¢ Build an ethnic entertainment district surrounding the Van Andel Arena
Community-minded acts that visit schools and neighborhoods

Ticket giveaways and discounts — Could suite holders pass opportunities on to
community?

Marketing to niche markets

Increase ethnic diversity of staff (Marketing department, leadership, etc)

Offering special events for young people

Partner with area businesses to appeal to ethnic market (The BOB, Tre Cugini, Louis
Benton’s)

Typically downtown events are “not for me”

Can’t afford tickets

Need to develop the market — providing promoters with resources

DDA Dollars

Partner with DeVos Place

We need ethnic radio

Work with local, grassroots promoters

We need to present Grand Rapids as a big city

Businesses, CAA, Kent County, City of Grand Rapids need to invest in our community
by assisting financially with bringing in ethnic entertainment

e How does the ethnic marketing fit into Grand Rapids’ overall marketing? “Keep It A
Secret”



¢ Join Hip Hop with marketing similar to Sprite’s campaign

What are you willing to pay for tickets?

$65.00
$40.00
R&B Acts: $50-$60
Industry Veterans: $50-$75
-Jay Z
-Mary J. Blige
e Top Gospel: $50.00
-Fred Hammond
-Yolanda Adams
e Genre Groupings: Up to $65.00
-India. Arie, Erykah Badu and Jill Scott



STRATEGIC
COMMUNICATIONS
GROUP uc

DIVERSITY
. MAHAGERLHD $TRATEOLSES
®ee0®

Convention Center and Van Andel Arena Focus Groups - 12/21/06
Focus Group Demographic: African Americans, 28-55 years old

What means of communications is most effective?

e 6 ® 6 ¢ & &6 6 &6 O & O © 0o O O O 0o O o

Black Student Unions and Latino Student Unions
Laurie Parks’ emails

Email

1140 AM, 640 AM and Grand Rapids Times
WOOD TV 8 and WOOD Radio

Grand Rapids Press

El Vocero

Advance

M Live

The Cadence

Posters

Billboards

Mailings

College papers

College event boards

1300 AM

Civic organizations

Churches

Fax

104.5 FM

Hubs in the Community

Family Fare

Bus stops

Woodland Mail

Shell Gas Station

Head N’ Soul Barber Shop
Sandman’s

Chicken Coop

Wing Heaven

Item 11



Marketing Ideas

hat

Descri

Groups and businesses become ticket and information distributors and receive a kick-
back for their efforts

-Restaurants

-Barber Shops

-Clubs

-Sororities and Fraternities

Promotions and ticket discounts

Create an entire entertainment experience in the downtown area

Bring artists based on the existing culture of the community (Conservative and faith-
based)

More crossover crowd performers

Sponsors to provide tickets for families

Make sure artists visit urban schools

Shell Gas Station Potential promotion

Collaborations within the community

Reinvent philosophy of entertainment in Grand Rapids

Expand Street Teams

Need additional entertainment for ethnic communities from all age groups
Collaborate with other businesses downtown (Hotels, restaurants, etc)

C ou want to

Sunday Evening Series

Hair Shows

Family-oriented shows

TD Jakes

UniverSoul Circus

Jennifer Hudson

Beyonce’

More acts like Three More Tenors

Broadway shows: The Lion King, The Color Purple
-Stretch of shows- Attracting folks to Grand Rapids
Sorority and Fraternity Conventions

-have an artist perform the same time as conference
Oprah Winfrey

Boxing

Comedy

experience at Van Andel fi i

Efficient, but not personable or friendly

Okay

We want to be a valued customer

We also need to educate our own community about entertainment protocol
-babies

-assigned seats



-on time to performances

What needs to change

Add more people of color to the Board

Need more employees of color in leadership and management positions

Need to examine Board recruitment process

Is Arena interested in the bottom line and recruiting customers of color?

We must be able to mobilize the community to support suggested changes

We must include faith-based communities including pastors/IDMA

Make shows more affordable for families — Ask businesses and others ahead of time to
help sponsor tickets

We need demographics of those who are currently attending shows. Is the Arena
measuring the demographics?

illin ay for tickets?

Comedy Shows - $45.00
-Jamie Foxx

-Steve Harvey

-Cat Williams

-Mike Epps

-Cedric the Entertainer
$75.00 is too much unless you are:
-Bill Cosby

-Gladys Knight

-Anita Baker

-Patti La Belle

-Colin Powell



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, January 24, 2007

L Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:00 am. Chairman Heacock presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance
Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnemey
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Clif Charles
George Heartwell
Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Brian Dykema
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB

II. Appointment of B M

Sonya R. Dean, Chief Deputy Clerk for Kent County, performed the oaths of office for Board Members
Steven R. Heacock and Birgit M. Klohs.

M.  Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Mr. Mclnerney, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the November
29, 2006, meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
January 24, 2007 -2
M.  Committee Reports
a. Operations Committee.
i CVB Report

Mr. Wilson presented a report on recent conventions and tradeshows held at DeVos Place®. Mr.
Helmstead presented a report on recent sales activities and major bid presentations.

b. Finance Committ

1 SMG November 2006 and December 2006 Financial Statements
for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms.Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the periods ended November 30, 2006, and December 31,
2006. Afier review and discussion, the motion was unanimously adopted.

il CAA November 2006 and December 2006 Financial Statements

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for
the periods ended November 30, 2006, and December 31, 2006. Afier review and discussion, the motion
was unanimously adopted.

1ii. Proposal for Extension of Audit Services Contract

Ms. Klohs presented a proposal from BDO Seidman, LLP for audit services for the year ending June 30,
2007. The quote is in the amount of $14,500 and represents an increase of 3.5% over the price for
auditing the fiscal year 2006 financial statements. Ms. Klohs stated that Finance Committee will be
brought into the discussions earlier next year for more input.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the extension of audit services

agreement with BDO Seidman LLP, to include financial statements of the CAA for the year ending June
30, 2007. The motion was unanimously adopted.

iv. SMG Food & Beverage November 2006 and December 2006
Revenue and Commission Report

Ms. Klohs presented the report and referred to the per cap comparison. A fiscal year 2006 concert

average was used as a per cap comparison for the Bob Seger and Cheetah Girls concerts, since they had
not performed at the Arena in the past.

V. Vice Chair Vacancy

The CVB Board has requested the reappointment of Clif Charles to the CAA Board for a term expiring
December 31, 2010,

Motion: Myr. McInerney, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to reappoint Clif Charles to the CAA Board of
Directors, for a term expiring December 31, 2010. Abstain: Lew Chamberlin. The motion was adopted.



Convention/Arena Authority Mecting
January 24, 2007 -3

Due to time constraints, Clif Charles has relinquished his position as CAA Vice Chair. Chair Heacock
opened the floor for nominations. Ms. Klohs nominated Mr. Tomaselli as Vice Chair. Mr. Tomaselli
stated that he would be willing to serve if elected. Chair Heacock closed the nominations.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to appoint Joseph Tomaselli as Vice Chair of
the CAA Board of Directors. The motion was adopted unanimously.

VI Van Andel Arena® VIP S ub Co ion

Mr. MacKeigan requested approval to enter into an agreement with Pioneer Construction to construct a
VIP Sports Club at a cost not to exceed $350,000. The SMG food and beverage contract included plans
for a new club/bar arca within the Arena. Many areas were considered, but Banquet Room A has been
designated as the most attractive option due to current use, external access, and access to the kitchen. A
rate of 30% is being proposed to be paid to the CAA from the club’s take. This rate would be effective
the first year of operation with the CAA maintaining an option to renegotiate after one year. The VIP
club will be an amenity for premium seat holders who pay a fee to have the first chance at buying tickets
to all events. SMG received proposals from three companies and Pioneer Construction’s proposal was
considered the best.

Motion: Mr. McInerney, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to enter into an agreement with Pioneer
Construction to construct a “VIP Sports Club” within the Van Andel Arena®, at a cost not to exceed
3350,000. The motion was adopted unanimously.

VII.  Ottawa Wine Festival Report

Mr. MacKeigan presented a report of the November 2006 trip to the Ottawa Wine & Food Festival. The
CAA is considering additional revenue opportunities and one idea is a wine and food festival that could
draw thousands of people to downtown as a showcase for local restaurants, Michigan wines, and
breweries. The festival would be scheduled during a lull in the convention and trade show market. The

Ottawa festival routinely attracts 25,000 people and generates $200,000 profit. The event costs $15, with
no guarantee of entry, and patrons buy tickets for $0.50 each that pay for samples of food and beverages.

viil. SMG ort and Facilities Calen

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®.

IX. Public Comment
None.
X.  Next Mecting Date
The date for next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, February 28, 2007, 8:00 am.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
January 24, 2007 -4

IX.  Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:25 am.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
SALES
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
363 254 617 624 7)
331,009 353,168 684,177 727,780 (43,603)
1,278,096 1,106,838 2,384,934 2,323,417 61,517
1,066,471 903,599 1,970,070 2,007,628 (37,558)
2,344,567 2,010,437 4,355,004 4,331,045 23,959
132,526 114,433 246,959 231,000 15,959
2,477,093 2,124,870 4,601,963 4,562,045 39,918
76,470 89,229 165,699 140,906 (24,793)
125,210 82,449 207,659 205,722 (1,937)
39,713 36,037 75,750 78,379 2,629
754,487 597,104 1,351,591 1,343,743 (7,848)
468,706 461,213 929,919 961,288 31,369
47,346 33,958 81,304 73,588 (7,716)
126,856 123,011 249,867 245,772 (4,095)
1,212,560 1,026,084 2,238,644 2,238,289 (355)
2,851,348 2,449,085 5,300,433 5,287,687 (12,746)
(374,255) (324,215) (698,470) (725,642) 27,172
166,570 166,570 153,702 12,868
(374,255) (490,785) (865,040) (879,344) 14,304

DeVos Place ended January holding very consistent with budgeted
expectations. January marks the beginning of the consumer show
season which started very well with successful Autorama and

RV events.

inance Director




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending January 31
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH January January January
Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 59 48 57
Aftendance 111,012 89,950 72,072
Direct Event Income $298,187 $255,033 $278,225
Ancillary Income 159,706 181,428 175,533
Other Income 20,321 19,250 1,733
Indirect Expenses (496,167) (491,588) (460,987)
Net Income ($17,953) ($35,877) ($5,496)
YTD YTD 2006 YTD 2006 YTD 2006
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 363 365 346
Attendance 331,009 353,550 283,452
Direct Event Income $1,278,096 $1,234,375 $1,216,805
Ancillary Income 1,066,471 1,054,551 1,088,178
Other Income 132,526 134,750 94,459
Indirect Expenses (2,851,347) (3,058,056) (2,700,869)
Net Income ($374,254) ($634,380) ($301,427)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget for the month due to the success of the Autorama and
RV consumer shows. These two events kicked off what will hopefully be a very strong
consumer show season.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below budget for the month as spending on Audio/Visual fell well
below expectations. Other areas were either consistent or ahead of budget overall.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

----------------- CURRENT - - === === === mm o= s mmmm mmmmmmmmmmmmmee e =YD m oo o e oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 316,695 268,750 290, 053 1,364,294 1,246,025 1,343,913
SERVICES INCOME <18,507> <13,717> <11,829> <86,198> <11,650> <127,111>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 298,187 255,033 278,225 1,278,096 1,234,375 1,216,802
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 57,527 56,940 67,798 413,244 423,420 402,133
NOVELTY 1,163 1,000 912 6,243 6,800 4,456
ELECTRICAL 40,067 16,062 35,340 222,388 199,036 251,045
OTHER ANCILLARY 60,950 107,426 71,483 424,596 425,295 430,544
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 159,706 181,428 175,533 1,066,471 1,054,551 1,088,178
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 457,893 436,461 453,758 2,344,567 2,288,926 2,304,980
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 20,321 19,250 17,333 132,526 134,750 94,459
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 478,214 455,711 471,091 2,477,093 2,423,676 2,399,440
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,234 11,743 8,416 76,470 82,201 65,189
FINANCE 17,202 17,143 16,434 125,210 120,001 117,311
MARKETING 8,860 6,531 7,030 39,713 45,717 43,597
OPERATIONS 105,323 102,548 88,065 754,487 792,776 609,047
EVENT MANAGEMENT 67,145 79,859 63,486 468,706 559,013 444,720
BOX OFFICE 7,435 6,133 6,354 47,346 42,931 45,310
SALES 17,010 20,481 10,960 126,856 143,367 82,652
OVERHEAD 260,958 247,150 260,242 1,212,560 1,272,050 1,293,043
INDIRECT EXPENSES 496,167 491,588 460,987 2,851,347 3,058,056 2,700,869
NET OPERATING INCOME <17,952> <35,877> 10,104 <374,254> <634,380> <301,429>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) <17,952> <35,877> 10,104 <374,254> <634,380> <301,429>

=== == ===ms== Sczs========= ==zmm S=====



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

---------------- CURRENT-------====w==--- -----=-wv~--—--YEAR TO DATE----------~=-
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed L <485> 0 0 16,926 0 30,728
Changeover Setup Billed 239 0 3,080 3,856 0 9,507
Stagehands Billed 72,879 90,050 60,080 675,061 564,950 637,861
Security Billed 25,722 23,610 24,284 88,242 100,310 120,510
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 16,596 16,450 13,445 77,962 78,125 73,866
Box Office Billed 2,000 1,900 1,300 9,000 9,300 8,100
Ticketing Service Billed 15,203 18,150 7,971 78,985 98,265 56,650
Utilities Billed o] 0 0 3,058 0 3,000
City Police Fire Billed 2,235 225 278 28,111 775 19,723
EMT Medical Billed 4,200 3,622 3,375 27,456 11,313 15,575
Cleaning Billed 1,562 0 125 10,131 0 3,324
Insurance Billed 178 0 244 4,536 0 2,181
Group Sales Commissions Billed 0 0 0 503 0 86
Telephone Billed 3,450 1,800 3,770 21,555 16,550 27,515
Damages Billed 230 0 0 3,730 0 0
Other Production Billed 4,047 0 4,201 50,298 0 36,403
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 148,054 155,807 122,151 1,099,410 879,588 1,045,029
Advertising Expense 1] 4] 1,300 17,334 0 32,537
Stagehand Wages 69,028 87,349 56,890 636,075 546,305 598,834
Contracted Security Expense 33,699 24,410 24,317 140,747 97,210 122,785
Ushers & T/T Wages 11,617 11,515 9,411 54,573 53,953 53,231
Ticket Sellers Wages 2,814 1,850 1,500 8,279 8,400 7,420
Ticket Service Charge Expense 2,241 7,260 1,006 27,977 38,045 20,267
City Police Fire Expense 2,009 0 <211> 23,288 300 25,982
EMT Medical Expense 3,168 3,572 1,727 24,238 9,813 15,978
Cleaning Wages 0 0 0 2,418 0 1,000
Contracted Cleaning Expense 33,756 33,568 32,550 185,241 137,212 172,210
Insurance Expense 168 0 225 3,938 0 2,112
Group Sales Commissions 0 0 0 207 0 34
Allocated Telephone Expense 863 0 943 5,389 0 6,879
Damage Expense 0 ] 0 9,500 0 0
Production Expense 7,200 0 4,322 46,404 0 112,871

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 166,562 169,524 133,979 1,185,608 891,238 1,172,140

NET SERVICE INCOME <18,507> <13,717> <11,829> <86,198> <11,650> <127,111>




Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

SMG DeVos Place

Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended January 31, 2007

Event Type
Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive

Other

Attendance

Eve;lts/Days Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
92 75 90,050 67,300 1,078,612 840,917
38 44 91,066 73,900 292,054 365,762
82 82 98,802 143,550 396,115 382,617
38 47 25,134 34,350 280,608 327,313
113 117 25,957 34,450 297,139 372,317
363 365 331,009 353,550 2,344,528 2,288,926
25.34% 20.55% 27.20% 19.04% 46.01% 36.74%
1047% 12.05% 27.51% 20.90% 12.46% 15.98%
22.59% 22.47% 29.85% 40.60% 16.90% 16.72%
1047% 12.88% 7.59% 9.72% 11.97% 14.30%
31.13% 32.05% 7.84% 9.74% 12.67% 16.27%



DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH

. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,317,718
721,304
92,718

2,131,740

495,344
244,203
108,238
137,727

<1,150,000>
854,579
1,215,904

<374,254>

2,131,740



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended January 31, 2007

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

40,038
328,948
31,538
18,161
234,646

36,965

15,874

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

721,304



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

----------------- CURRENT- - -~--===cmmmm=m== =some—=c—cmcecaeo o YTDmmomomcomoncmmomnnes
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 67,702 70,649 59,552 484,765 494,543 424,817
Part-Time 15,917 13,167 g 9,581 74,391 92,169 68,017
Wages-Trade 102,325 119,523 90,809 853,128 836,%61 804,202
Sales Commissions Group Sales 199 0 744 371 0 1,152
Auto Allowance 2,121 0 1,971 14,846 0 13,796
Auto Expense 150 2,271 R 150 1,050 15,897 1,050
Taxes & Benefits 51,315 52,188 46,339 335,269 365,316 325,030
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <102,969> <111,581> <84,600> <835,534> <781, 067> <780,693>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 136,760 146,217 124,547 928,285 1,023,519 857,370
Contracted Security 22,305 26,917 19,539 154,561 188,419 145,498
Contracted Cleaning 3,342 0 2,544 20,513 0 14,171
Other Contracted Services 184 200 224 1,447 1,400 1,565
Travel & Entertainment 25 1,209 884 5,325 8,463 7,272
Corporate Travel 0 417 0 0 2,919 0
Meetings & Conventions 419 1,958 128 12,002 15,206 11,379
Dues & Subscriptions 2,392 300 0 5,128 2,100 2,499
Employee Training 0 833 0 7,457 5,831 1,300
Computer Expense 2,549 6,250 5,602 33,100 43,750 27,695
Professional Fees 2,888 3,042 2,301 19,506 21,294 15,955
Marketing & Advertising 6,841 4,217 3,595 22,981 29,519 26,006
Box Office Expenses <215> 0 12 21 0 <17>
Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 389
Vehicle Maintenance 14 0 0 14 0 0
Trash Removal 1,090 2,500 2,676 14,726 17,500 13,515
Equipment Rental 1,857 1,000 884 10,294 7,000 9,326
Landscaping 0 833 0 8,337 5,831 3,671
Exterminating 814 1,000 0 25,122 51,440 24,654
Cleaning 0 0 0 4,500 29,000 9,600
Construction Costs 0 0 0 150 0 0
Repairs & Maintenance 35,923 36,462 32,436 251,856 255,234 181,949
Supplies 22,992 18,250 13,058 155,511 127,750 98,337
Bank Service Charges 1,416 1,500 1,360 8,748 10,500 9,351
Insurance 30,486 22,232 22,572 145,447 155,624 143,046
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 1,138 0 133
Printing & Stationaxy 0 917 78 1,332 6,419 158
Office Supplies 0 750 174 7,489 5,250 7,099
Postage 78 417 60 2,275 2,919 1,904
Parking Expense 2,177 1,500 1,719 14,448 10,500 11,808
Telephone Long Distance 7,402 6,000 7,118 52,945 42,000 39,971
Utilities 202,789 196,000 199,986 854,579 914,000 898,364
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 20,433 87,500 87,500 143,781
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <863> <1,833> <943> <5,389> <12,831> <6,879>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 359,406 345,371 336,440 1,923,061 2,034,537 1,843,499
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 496,167 491,588 460,987 2,851, 347 3,058,056 2,700,869

¢



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,531,770 (698,470) 833,300 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534919
Excess 1,531,770 (698,470) 133,300 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,071,518 4,601,963 9,673,481 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 471,518 601,963 1,073,481 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** 297,044 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 597,044 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL.

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Thom Connors

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facillty



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2007

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 66 51 117 121 @)
ATTENDANCE 328,918 286,481 615,399 680,500 (65,101)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 810,137 455,621 1,265,758 1,284,118 (18,360)
ANCILLARY INCOME 923,371 573,126 1,496,497 1,456,159 40,338
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 1,733,508 1,028,747 2,762,255 2,740,277 21,978
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,387,115 922,148 2,309,263 2,240,000 69,263
TOTAL INCOME 3,120,622 1,950,895 5,071,518 4,980,277 91,241
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 83,644 64,634 148,278 118,845 (29,433)
FINANCE 109,254 87,654 196,908 197,258 350
MARKETING 173,315 83,174 256,489 315,994 59,505
OPERATIONS 861,485 518,274 1,379,759 1,337,761 (41,998)
BOX OFFICE 74,429 38,416 112,845 106,590 (6,255)
LUXURY SEATING 52,727 45,064 97,791 115,775 17,984
SKYWALK ADMIN 22,832 19,358 42,190 39,856 (2,334)
OVERHEAD 718,561 586,927 1,305,488 1,342,163 36,665

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 2,096,247 1,443,501 3,539,748 3,574,232 34,484
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 1,024,375 507,394 1,531,770 1,406,045 125,725
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 130,474 130,474 103,994 (26,480)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 1,024,375 376,920 1,401,296 1,302,051 99,245

1
"/

Comments:

The Arena performed at expected levels for the month of January. Additional
revenue generated from the non-budgeted bull riding event and strong selling General Manager /
Harlem Globetrotters and Jam @ the Van was offset by higher than anticipated
expenses in the operations area.

“Director of Finance



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending January 31, 2007
and the YTD ending June 30, 2007 compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH January January January

Actual Budget FY 2006
Number of Events 11 9 11
Attendance 53,881 43,500 46,947
Direct Event Income $78,737 $45,016 $43,702
Ancillary Income 127,265 96,207 97,976
Other Income 162,851 186,667 166,687
Indirect Expenses (335,893) (297,242) (319,302)
Net Income $32,960 $30,648 ($10,938)
YTD YTD 2007 YTD 2007 YTD 2006

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 66 64 66
Attendance 328,918 360,000 293,413
Direct Event Income $810,137 $653,477 $474,298
Ancillary Income 923,371 809,967 682,937
Other Income 1,387,115 1,306,669 1,232,108
Indirect Expenses (2,096,247) (2,080,694) (2,057,102)
Net Income $1,024,375 $689,419 $332,241

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in higher than budget for the month. The overage was due to a bull riding event that hosted

during the month that was not a part of the original budget. Sales for the Harlem Globetrotters (up 40%) and Jam
@ the Van (up 225%) also helped contribute to the overage.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above budget for the month due to strong F&B per caps for the bull riding event and
the higher than expected attendance on the two basketball events hosted during the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in over budget due to higher than expected spending in the operations department.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

----------------- CURRENT - - = - == <<=~ =< memmmm mmmmmmmmmmmme o o oY TDmmmmmm e — o mmeemem =
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 189,362 134,000 129,712 1,104,948 1,026,500 829,641
SERVICES INCOME <110, 625> <88, 984> <86,010> <294, 811> <373,023> <355, 342>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 78,737 45,016 43,702 810,137 653,477 474,298
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 114,740 83,607 88,229 778,375 674,017 578,072
NOVELTY 10,595 9,520 5,127 124,604 117,260 86,135
OTHER ANCILLARY 1,930 3,080 4,620 20,392 18,690 18,729
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 127,265 96,207 97,976 923,371 809,967 682,937
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 206,002 141,223 141,678 1,733,508 1,463,444 1,157,235
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 162,852 186,667 166,687 1,387,115 1,306,669 1,232,108
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 368,853 327,890 308,365 3,120,622 2,770,113 2,389,343
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,380 9,778 14,367 83,644 68,446 74,016
FINANCE 16,604 16,314 14,588 109,254 114,198 110,787
MARKETING 23,721 26,209 26,006 173,315 183,463 160,438
LUXURY SEATING 9,146 9,648 14,347 52,727 67,536 66,499
OPERATIONS 136,977 111,228 98,294 861,485 778,596 747,986
BOX OFFICE 10, 905 8,897 8,467 74,429 62,279 60,349
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 4,100 3,322 4,429 22,832 23,254 22,985
OVERHEAD 122,060 111,846 138,804 718,561 782,922 814,041
INDIRECT EXPENSES 335,893 297,242 319,302 2,096,247 2,080,694 2,057,102
NET OPERATING INCOME 32,960 30,648 <10, 938> 1,024,375 689,419 332,241
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 32,960 30,648 <10, 938> 1,024,375 689,419 332,241




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

---------------- CURRENT-~--=-==--=------ =-=---=-w-ww----YEAR TO DATE-----~-----~--
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 47,909 20,000 17,509 188,666 31,000 137,688
Sponsorship Income 5,000 ’ [} 10,000 121,593 0 10,000
Labor Billed 714 0 500 12,724 6,540 10,928
Changeover Setup Billed 108 ] 158 56,345 48,000 59,504
Stagehands Billed 7,109 §,200 6,640 241,182 240,600 235,625
Security Billed 301 0 634 92,550 76,650 84,184
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 720 1,200 759 61,370 58,700 55,154
Box Office Billed 0 0 1] 4,543 4,516 5,010
Ticketing Service Billed 3,822 1,400 1,385 40,591 100,100 37,556
Utilities Billed [} 0 500 1,700 0 4,575
City Police Fire Billed 770 0 1,120 5,775 4,032 6,790
EMT Medical Billed 2,179 2,000 2,164 10,242 10,600 10,167
Production Materials Billed 0 0 0 0 0 3,778
Cleaning Billed 81 0 130 65,347 53,250 46,769
Insurance Billed 0 0 0 0 0 1,123
Group Sales Commissions Billed 2,292 0 897 5,511 ] 4,615
Telephone Billed 640 500 1,430 14,305 14,800 14,770
Damages Billed 1,079 0 0 1,079 0 0
Other Production Billed 2,145 2,500 3,697 157,332 93,500 159,100
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 74,867 32,800 47,521 1,080,854 742,288 887,334
Advertising Expense 47,494 20,000 18,871 210,977 41,000 150,082
Sponsorship Expenses 0 0 0 1,653 0 0
Labor Wages 607 0 425 10,815 6,477 9,288
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 21,201 18,300 21,435 101,799 128,226 140,346
Stagehand Wages 8,555 7,095 7,885 252,106 264,926 240,352
Contracted Security Expense 24,603 13,650 17,989 172,086 134,610 158,243
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 25,028 20,150 21,986 135,875 146,370 145,666
Ticket Sellers Wages 0 1] 0 4,045 0 4,258
Ticket Service Charge Expense 3,216 4,600 2,193 44,514 104,650 32,254
City Police Fire Expense 430 0 1,120 4,084 5,282 9,269
EMT Medical Expense 5,647 2,889 3,437 19,676 18,476 16,343
Contracted Cleaning Expense 26,072 20,100 23,361 119,211 158,149 140,104
Group Sales Commissions 761 1] 0 4,254 0 2,009
Allocated Telephone Expense 192 0 204 4,172 4,145 3,876
Production Expense 21,627 15,000 14,628 290,398 103,000 190,586
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 185,492 121,784 133,532 1,375,665 1,115,311 1,242,677

NET SERVICE INCOME <110,625> <88,984> <86,010> <294,811> <373,023> <355,342>




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending January 31, 2007

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
13 14 51,644 50,500 264,693 195,393
4 4 27,761 24,500 188,764 132,357
11 12 108,798 98,000 862,686 758,598
26 26 111,029 130,000 267,269 258,830
12 8 29,686 57,000 119,208 118,266
66 64 328,918 360,000 1,702,620 1,463,444
19.70% 21.88% 15.70% 14.03% 15.55% 13.35%
6.06% 6.25% 8.44% 6.81% 11.09% 9.04%
16.67% 18.75% 33.08% 27.22% 50.67% 51.84%
39.39% 40.63% 33.76% 36.11% 15.70% 17.69%
18.18% 12.50% 9.03% 15.83% 7.00% 8.08%



VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

3,922,447
1,395,432
92,139

5,410,018

<180, 751>

242,078
1,632,540
2,895,081

<1,700,000>
435,369
1,061,324
1,024,375




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending January 31, 2007

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable

272,784
519,973
9,389
40,726
365,744

108,491

48,673

29,652

1,395,432



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 01/31/07

----------------- CURRENT-~=~======2cccom== —emamcccccecocmee e YD e mmmm o mmm o mmm e e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 56,737 59,541 51,875 401,869 416,787 395,785
Part-Time . 7,927 5,833 5,243 40,256 40,831 37,897
Wages-Trade 46,721 69,232 39,832 477,274 484,624 450,849
Sales Commissions Group Sales 533 0 825 7,583 0 3,188
Auto Allowance 594 985 577 4,156 6,895 4,040
Auto Expense . 300 0 300, 2,100 0 2,100
Taxes & Benefits 38,568 38,187 34,367 243,544 267,309 255,799
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <28,814> <59,837> <26,194> <387,276> <418,859> <361,548>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 122,565 113,941 106,826 789,507 797,587 788,110
Contracted Security 21,537 19,760 18,203 145,326 138,320 137,384
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 3,250 2,098 16,506 22,750 19,483
Other Contracted Services 309 300 314 16,739 2,100 3,470
Travel & Entertainment 636 858 929 8,237 6,006 6,119
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 4,375 509
Meetings & Conventions 0 350 0 2,027 2,450 2,557
Dues & Subscriptions 2,392 208 5,442 4,826 1,456 8,394
Employee Training 0 750 0 1,808 5,250 337
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 269 0 0
Computer Expense 10,958 5,417 8,546 43,223 37,919 44,100
Professional Fees 2,250 2,583 1,898 17,811 18,081 14,428
Marketing & Advertising 11,256 15,000 18,278 83,376 105,000 63,247
Box Office Expenses 25 [4] 41 <1,005> 0 <913>
Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 348
Trash Removal 1,560 1,500 663 12,221 10,500 9,181
Equipment Rental 1,598 500 1,080 10,787 3,500 9,723
Landscaping 499 483 0 3,621 3,381 2,234
Exterminating 248 300 248 1,688 2,100 2,252
Cleaning 0 150 0 2,650 1,050 2,650
Rental Office Equipment 0 750 0 0 5,250 0
Repairs & Maintenance 27,702 9,333 19,571 125,468 65,331 102,804
Supplies 18,017 15,758 9,917 136,806 110,306 100,239
Bank Service Charges 461 750 467 3,012 5,250 3,895
Insurance 13,447 15,179 10,548 97,127 106,253 90,488
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 1,000 0 72
Other Taxes 0 [ <49> 0 0 <269>
Printing & Stationary 0 917 0 3,250 6,419 261
Office Supplies 437 1,000 "] 9,482 7,000 9,615
Postage 1,520 1,000 1,222 8,477 7,000 5,114
Parking Expense 2,664 2,000 2,076 17,677 14,000 15,095
Telephone Long Distance 1,781 7,000 3,817 35,282 49,000 53,865
Utilities 83,261 68,400 91,507 435,369 478,800 444,924
Base Fee 12,500 12,500 20,433 87,500 87,500 142,286
Common Area Expense <3,636> <2,945> <4,566> <20,248> <20,615> <21,022>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <192> <375> <204> <4,172> <2,625> <3,876>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 213,328 183,301 212,477 1,306,740 1,283,107 1,268,992
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 335,893 297,242 319,302 2,096,247 2,080,694 2,057,102




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2007

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses . 1,531,770 (698,470) 833,300 603,704
Benchmark 700,000 534919
Excess 1,531,770 (698,470) 133,300 68,785

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2006
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual

Base Fee 150,000 150,000 300,000 490,400
Incentive Fee

Revenue 5,071,518 4,601,963 9,673,481 9,374,417

Benchmark Revenue 4,600,000 4,000,000 8,600,000 8,257,384

Revenue Excess 471,518 601,963 1,073,481 1,117,033

Incentive Fee ** 297,044 229,259
Total SMG Management Fee 597,044 719,659

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



2:27 PM
0211307 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/8avings
1040 - Cash - Operations - SMG
1060 - Operations - Cash
Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1070 - Kent County - Operating
1200 - Accounts Recelvable -
1300 - Prepaid Expenses
1600 - Advances/Deposits Recelvable

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Buildings & Structures
Equip
Vehicles

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
2008 - Accounts payable - SMG

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
2210 - Advance Ticket Sales
2220 - Advance deposits
2800 - Deferred facility income

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabifities

Total Liabllities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
3900 - Retained Eamnings
Net income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Jan 31, 07

4,299,504.10
231,699.94

4,531,204.04

19,558,736.92
2,021,241.17
144,082.29

-2,850,000.07
18,874,060.31

23,405,264.35

280,652.31
340,486.58
43,914.30

665,063.19
24,070,927.84

319,612.16

486,224.17

805,836.33

717,173.61
1,872,750.73
2089,103.00
744,284.74

3,633,312.08
4,439,148.41

4,439,148.41

37,035,584.45
-15,526,165.80

-1,878,239.52
19,631,179.13

24,070,327.64



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10:60 AM
o2r13/07 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 01/31/2007
Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 443,193.18
Cleared Transactions

Checks and Payments - 26 items
Bill Pmt -Check 1/2/2007 6579 Eastemn Floral X -67.95 -67.95
Bill Pmt -Check * 1/2/2007 8578 DTE Energy X -1,603.84 -1,671.79
Bill Pmt -Check 1/2/2007 6577 Dickinson Wright PLLC X -1,034.80 -2,708.59
Bill Pmt -Check 1212007 6576 Consumers Energy X -68,860.88 -71,567.47
Bill Pmt -Check 11212007 6581 Hurst Industries X <2,213.50 -73,780.97
Bill Pmt -Check 1/2/2007 6582 ICMA Retirement Corporati... X -271.40 -74,052.37
Bill Pmt -Check | 11212007 6583 {CMA Retirement Corporati... X -50.00 -74,102.37
Bill Pmt -Check 1/2/12007 6584 Priority Health X 370.42 -74,472.718
Bill Pmt -Check 17212007 6580 Grand Raplds City Treasurer X -16,713.16 -80,186.95
Check 1/5/2007 10158 Susan M. Waddell X -1,496.00 -01,681.85
Check 1/5/2007 10157 Rich MacKeigan X -183.57 -91,865.62
Check 1/512007 10158 Susan M. Waddell X -865.83 -92,731.35
Check 1/5/2007 10157 Rich MacKeigan X -870.67 -93,602.02
Bill Pmt -Check 1/1612007 6590 Progressive AE X -43,988.75 -137,690.77
Bili Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6591 Susan Waddell X -864.98 -138,455.73
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6592 United Rentals (North Ames... X -148,875.00 -288,330.73
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6588 Consumers Energy X <35,845.28 -324,176.01
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 €589 Kent Count Dept of Public ... X -135,320.43 -459,505.44
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6585 Andy J. Egan Company, inc. X -22,137.00 -481,642.44
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6588 Grand Raplds City Treasurer X -6,834.06 -488,476.50
Bill Pmt -Check 1/15/2007 6587 Dickinson Wright PLLC X -72850 -489,205.00
Chaeck 1/19/2007 10159 Rich MacKeigan X -183.48 -489,388.46
Check 1/19/2007 10160 Susan M. Waddell X -974.93 -490,363.39
Check 1/19/2007 10159 Rich MacKelgan X -870.67 -491,234.06
Check 1/19/2007 10160 Susan M. Waddell X -1,496.00 -492,730.06
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6607 Progressive AE X -1,004.38 -493,734.42

Total Checks and Payments -493,734.42 -493,734.42

Deposits and Credits - 160 items
Deposit 12/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X 88.00 88.00
Deposit 12/29/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X 113.00 201.00
Deposit 12/29/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X 67.00 268.00
Deposit 12/31/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X 409.50 677.50
Deposit 12/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X 390.00 1,087.50
Deposit 12/31/2008 DeVos Place parking revenue X 266.50 1,334.00
Deposit 12/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X 32.50 1,368.50
Deposit 12/31/2006 DeVos Place parking revenue X 71.50 143800
Deposit 1/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 73.00 1,5611.00
Deposit 1/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 9.00 1,520.00
Deposit 1/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 293.00 1,813.00
Deposit 11212007 VAA land lease/OVP parking r... X 26,856.00 28,669.00
Deposit 1/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 116.00 28,785.00
Deposit 1/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 151.00 28,936.00
Deposit 1/3/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 5§89.50 29,525.50
Deposit 1/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 62.00 29,587.50
Deposit 1/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 762.00 30,349.50
Deposit 1/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 156.00 30,505.50
Deposit 1/3/12007 Van Andel Arena excess cash... X 200,000.00 230,505.50
Deposit 17312007 DeVos Place excess cash flo... X 100,000.00 330,505.50
Deposit 1/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 217.00 330,722.50
Deposit 1/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 5250 330,775.00
Deposit 1/3/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 1,066.50 331,841.50
Deposit 1/4/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 23.00 331,864.50
Deposit 1/4/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 116.00 331,880.50
Deposit 1/412007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 72.00 332,052.50
Deposit 1/4/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 11050 332,163.00
Deposit 11412007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 479.00 332,642.00
Deposit 142007 DeVos Piace parking revenus X 109.00 332,751.00
Deposit 114/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 74.00 332,825.00
Deposit 1/5/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 65.00 332,890.00
Deposit 1/5/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 89.00 332,879.00
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVes Place parking revenue X 195.00 333,174.00
Deposit 1/5/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 195.50 333,369.50
Deposit 1/5/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 455.00 333,824.50
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 21450 334,039.00
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 3%0.00 334,420.00
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 34250 334,771.50
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 134.00 334,805.50
Deposit 1/672007 DaVos Place parking revenue X 286.00 335,191.50
Deposit 1/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 1,069.50 336,261.00
Deposit 17712007 DeVos Place parking revenue X 331.50 336,692.50



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Q
=

10:50 AM
02113/07 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 01/31/2007
Type Date Num Name Memo
Deposit 1/7/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1182007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/812007 DaVos Place parking revenue
1/9/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/9/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Depostit 1/9/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/9/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/8/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/9/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/1012007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/10/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/10/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/10/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/10/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/11/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11112007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/11/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposlt 111112007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/14/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11112007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11272007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/12/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1122007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 17122007 Interest
Deposit 11212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 111212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/12/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/13/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/13/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/13/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/13/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/13/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1132007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11132007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/14/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 111472007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/14/2007 DeVos Place patking revenue
Deposit 1/15/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/1512007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/152007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/16/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/16/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/16/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/16/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/16/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/17/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 11172007 DeVos Piace parking revenue
Deposit 1/17/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1172007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/17/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/17/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposlit 1/18/2007 DeVos Piace parking revenue
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenug
Deposit 1/19/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/19/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/19/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/18/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/2012007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue

><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><XXX><><><><><><><><><><><><><><><XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX%XXXX I

Amount Balance
162.50 336,765.00
247.00 337,002.00

97.00 337,099.00
301.50 337,400.50
607.00 338,007.50
393.00 338,400.50
238.00 338,638.50
122.00 338,760.50

1,3983.00 340,163.50
345.50 340,499.00
949.00 341,448,00
271.00 341,719.00
58.00 341,777.00
46.00 341,823.00
1,494.50 343,.317.50
1,219.50 344,537.00
1,835.50 346,372,50
354.50 346,727.00
689.50 347,416.50
31150 347,728.00

52.00 347,780.00
148.50 347,928.50

27.00 347,955.50

31.00 347,986.50
282.50 348,269.00
129.00 348,398.00
822.00 349,220.00
803.50 350,123.50

78.00 350,201.60

1516.25 351,7M17.75
2,784,00 354,801.76
27450 354,776.25
98.00 354,874.25
6.50 354,880.75
1,084.00 355,964.75
587.00 356,551.76
281750 359,369.25
1,125.50 360,494.75
676.00 361,170.75
1,683.50 362,854.26
806.00 363,660.25
1,371.50 365,031.76
273.00 365,304.76

63.50 365,368.25
361.50 365,728.75
473.00 368,202.75

89.00 366,291.75

83.00 366,374.75
211.50 366,588.25
283.00 366,869.25
583.00 367,462.25
507.00 367,869.25
465.00 368,434.25
270.00 368,704.25
5§77.00 369,281.25
5§13.50 369,794.75
125.00 369,919.78
106.00 370,026.75
539.50 370.565.25
671.00 371,236.25

27.00 371,263.25
208.00 34125

1,125.00 372,5988.25
501.50 373,087.78
39.00 373,136.76
40.00 373,176.75
2,643.00 375,819.76
676.00 376,495.76
722.50 377,218.25
898.00 378,116.25
799.50 378,015.75
494,00 370,409.76
1,644.50 381,054.25
816.00 381,873.25
487.50 382,360.75

-3-



A I I I I 3 13 33 3t e e E R R R R R R Rk Ig

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10:60 AM
02113107 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 01/31/2007
Type Date Num Name Memo
Deposit 1/20/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/21/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 172112007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/21/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/22/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 172212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/23/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112312007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/23/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112312007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/23/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/23/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112472007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/24/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112412007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/24/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/25/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
1/25/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112512007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/25/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/25/2007 DeVos Place parking revenua
1/26/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/26/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/26/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/26/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 12612007 Van Andel Arena land lease: ...
Deposit 1126/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/26/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112612007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 172712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 112712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 12712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/27/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/2712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
1/27/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/29/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/29/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/30/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
1/30/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/30/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/30/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/30/2007 DeVos Place parking revenus
Deposit 1/30/2007 Administrative Services
Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 19 items
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6112 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2007 6611 The Employers’ Association
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6610 Seaman's Air Conditioning ...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6606 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6609 Robbins Lock Shop inc.
Bill Pmt -Check 112012007 8608 Rick L. Van Sweden DDS PC
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6605 Posterloid Corporation
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6604 Partners by Design, LLC
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6603 Midwest Food Equipment S...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6602 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
8ill Pmt -Check 1/28/2007 6601 ICMA Retirement Corporati...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2007 6600 Grand Rapids Popcom
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6599 Grand Rapids City Treasurer
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6598 Gordon Food Service, inc.
Bili Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6597 Gene E. Fonger, O.D.
Bill Pmt -Check 1/28/2007 6596 DTE Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 1/20/2007 6595 Diversity Management Strat...
Bill Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6594 COVERCO Inc.
Bilt Pmt -Check 1/29/2007 6593 Consumers Energy

Total Checks and Payments

Amount Balance
1,300.00 383,660.75
1,898.00 385,558.75
1.410.50 386,969.25

642.00 387,611.26
30.00 387,641.25
49.00 387,690.26
56.00 387,746.25
33.00 387,778.26
170.00 387,849.25
15.00 387,864.25
225.00 388,189.25
169.00 388,358.26
19.50 388,377.75
28.00 388,405.75
11.00 388,418.75
72.00 388,488.75
160.00 388,648.75
136.50 388,785.25
528.00 389,313.26
165.00 389,478.25
642.00 390,120.25
1,135.50 301,265.75
1,108.50 392,364.25
946.00 39331028
376.00 393,686.26
13,461.00 407,141.25
306.00 40745325
26.00 407,478.25
156.00 407,635.25
§52.50 408,187.75
1,680.84 409,868.59
337.50 410,208.09
240.00 410,446.09
234,00 410,680.09
1,451.00 412,131.09
180.00 412,321.09
95.00 412,416.09
§31.50 41294759
76.00 413,023.59
148.50 413,173.09
23.00 413,196.00
348.00 413,644.09
16,370.00 429,914.09
429,914.09 429.914.09
-63,820.33 -63,820.33
-63,820.33 379,372.85
-308.73 -388.73
-291.00 -889.73
-7,238.00 -7,927.73
-370.42 -8,288.15
-101.76 -8,399.90
-94.00 -8,493.90
-223.98 8,717.88
-59,342.50 -68,060.38
-306.12 -68,366.50
-100.00 -68,466.50
-542.80 -89,009.30
-244.26 -69,263.55
-186.40 -69,449.95
-7573.28 -717,023.23
-69.00 -77,092.23
-1,008.11 -78,180.34
-4,187.50 -82,377.84
-593.60 -82,971.44
-68,572.47 -151,543.91
-151,543.91 -151,543.91



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

10:60 AM
02/113/07 Reconciliation Detall
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 01/31/2007
Type Date Name Memo
Deposits and Credits - 7 items
Sales Receipt 9/14/2006 Grand Action Committee
1/31/12007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/31/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/31/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/31/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/31/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 1/31/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Total Deposits and Credits
Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 01/31/2007
New Transactions
Checks and Payments -4 items
Check 2/2/2007 10162 Susan M. Waddell
Check 27212007 10161 Rich MacKeigan
Check 21212007 10162 Susan M. Waddell
Check 2212007 10161 Rich MacKelgan
Total Checks and Payments
Deposits and Credits - 34 items
Deposit 2/172007 DaVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/1/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Daposit 21172007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/1/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21172007 DeVos Place parking revenue
21412007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/172007 DeVas Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Depasit 2/2/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21212007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/312007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 20372007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2312007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/3/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/312007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/42007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/4/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/4/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/512007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/5/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21612007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/6812007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/6/2007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
21712007 DsVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 21712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2712007 DeVos Place parking revenue
Deposit 2/9/2007 Van Andel Arena excess cash...
Deposit 21972007 DeVos Place excess cash flo...
Total Deposits and Credits
Total New Transactions
Ending Balance

Amount Balance
0.00 0.00
31.50 31.50
65.00 $6.50
1,181.00 1,277.50
167.00 1,444.50
1,601.00 3,045.50
825.50 3.871.00
3,871.00 3,871.00
-147,672.91 -147,672.91
-211,493.24 231,699.94
-1,496.00 -1,496.00
-870.67 -2,366.87
-865.61 -3,232.28
-183.48 -3,415.74
-3,415.74 -3,415.74
1,534.50 1,534.50
305.50 1,840.00
773.50 2,613.50
581.00 3,184.50
187.00 3.381.50
97.00 3,478.50
409.00 3,887.50
1,985.50 5,873.00
1,729.00 7,602.00
6§33.60 8,135.50
3,599.00 11,734.50
545.00 12,279.50
1,096.00 13,375.60
518.50 13,894.00
318.50 14,21250
2,528.00 16,740.50
222.00 16,962.50
581.50 17,554.00
1,124.50 18,678.50
1,482.00 20,160.50
477.00 20,637.50
2,470.00 23,107.50
124.00 23,231.50
168.00 23,400.50
154.00 23,654.50
686.00 23,620.50
229.00 23,849.50
201.50 24,051.00
804.00 24,855.00
86.00 24,941.00
621.50 25,562.50
61.00 25,623.50
100,000.00 125,623.50
150,000.00 275,623.50
275,623.50 275,623.50
272,207.76 272,207.76
690,714.62 608,907.70




10:29 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

02/13/07 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 12/31/2006

Type Date Num Name Memo cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 19,394,140.42
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 12/1/2008 Interest X 164,596.50 164,596.50
Total Deposits and Credits 164,596.50 164,596.50
Total Cleared Transactions 164,596.50 164,596.50
Cleared Balance 164,596.50 19,568,736.92
Reglster Balance as of 12/31/2006 164,596.50 19,558,736.92
Ending Balance 164,596.60 19,668,736.92




ZoTauy
ZoTauy

Xd qaLS0Od

6

);\%

E«
AN <D
SO L6T'LLY'6T JONVIVY XIIVA JHOVITAY
06°96S’%9T A 05°96S'%9T IYLOL
05°96S'%91 0 06°96GS°'%9T Z €
INAOWY LIN LNQONWY ON LNOOWY ON HdXL
........... SNOILONQHEQ---- ----------SNOILIAQ¥Y------
HJ00 HdAL A9 4AYOdHA
00:62:61 ho\mN\Ho Z6°9€L'8SGS‘6T €S HST’'¥8 INIddY
90: €% %1 mO\mN\NH 6€°Z8S'PLY 6T L6 TP%’08 INIddVY
ZY 0PI '$6€°6T
daLsS0d FNWIL HONYIVL SNOILOOQAHA SNOILIAAVY qF0dN0s
€T6ET TZZ TOLO :dIEWAN ONILYIId0-¥YVYD *: aNnd
wo\ﬁm\mﬁ HONOYHL wO\Ho\NH
JIOAIT aNNg
cHOHY4 INIX 40 XAINNOD

€ 90/T€/2T
€ 90/1T0/21

ddAL dLYa

TO:ET LO/9T/T0

tNOY
SLAYT



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss
July 2006 through January 2007
Jul 06 - Jan 07
income
4040 - Private Support 0.00
4500 - Interest on Investments 561,034.81
4840 - Land Lease 88,410.00
4548 - Parking Revenues 412,273.34
4880 - Miscellaneous Revenue 16,370.00
Total Income 1,078,088.15
Expense
6000 - Professional Services 40,283.87
6080 - Other Contractual Services 5,687.50
6068 - Pedestrian Safety 24,837.59
6088 - Parking Management 152,655.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses 28,900.85
6200 - Capital 1,050,870.53
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 38,847.80
6300 - Utilities Expense 1,277,211.39
6800 - DID Assessment 50,208.90
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00
8000 - Personal Services 57,675.14
Total Expense 2,956,327.67
Net income -1,878,239.62



9:36 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss by Fund
July 2006 through January 2007
Admin & Capital Replacement
‘Ml TOTAL
income
4040 - Private Support 0.00 0.00
4800 - Interest on Investments 561,034.81 561,034.81
4540 - Land Lease 88,410.00 88,410.00
4848 - Parking Revenues 412,273.34 412,273.34
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue 16,370.00 16,370.00
Total income 1,078,088.15 1,078,088.15
Expense
8000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 23,674.05 23,674.05
6040 - Legal Services 16,609.82 16,609.82
Total 6000 - Professional Services 40,283.87 40,283.87
6080 - Other Contractual Services 5,687.50 5,687.50
8086 - Pedestrian Safety 24,837.59 24,837.59
6068 - Parking Management 152,65500  152,655.00
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00 9.00
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,196.86 19,196.86
6110 - Meeting Expense 238.48 236.46
6120 - Supplies 4,988.53 498853
6140 - Printing and Binding 4,470.00 4,470.00
Total 6100 - Other Suppiies & Expenses 28,900.85 28,800.85
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 1,050,670.53  1,050,670.53
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 38,847.90 38,847.90
6300 - Utilities Expense
6301 : Electricity 641,653.05 641,653.05
6310 - Natural Gas 6,044.26 6,044.26
6320 - Steam 576,694.05 576,694.05
6340 - Water & Sewer 52,820.03 52,820.03
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,277,211.39  1,277,211.39
6800 - DID Assessment 50,298.80 50,298.90
8600 - SMG incentive Fees 229,259.00 220,259.00
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 45,242.01 45,242.01
8030 - Employee Benefits 12,433.13 12,433.13
Total 8000 - Personal Services 57,675.14 57,675.14
Total Expense 2,956,327.87 2956,327.67
Net Income -1,878,239.62  -1,878,239.62



9:38 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

02114107 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrusl Basis July 2008 through January 2007
Jul °08 - Jan 07 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
income
4040 - Private Support 0.00
4600 - interest on Investments 561,034.81 457,919.00 103,115.81 122.56%
4540 - Land Lease 88,410.00 90,181,00 -1,771.00 98.0%
4648 - Parking Revenues 412,273.34 428,498.00 -16,224.68 86.2%
4860 - Miscellaneous Revenue 16,370.00 8,750.00 7,620.00 187.1%
Total income 1,078,088.15 985,348.00 92,740.15 109.4%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 23,674.05 16,169.00 8,505.05 156.1%
6040 - Legal Services 16,609.82 17,500.00 -890.18 94.9%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 40,283.87 32,669.00 7.614.87 123.3%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 5,687.50 35,000.00 -29,312.50 16.3%
60885 - Pedestrian Safety 24,837.59 46,669.00 -21,831.41 53.2%
6068 - Parking Management 152,655.00 196,721.00 -44,066.00 77.6%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability 19,1688.86 11,669.00 7.527.86 164.5%
6110 - Meeting Expense 23646 2331.00 -2,094.54 10.1%
6120 - Supplies 4,988.53 5,831.00 -842.47 85.6%
6140 - Printing and Binding 4,470.00
Total 6100 - Other Suppiles & Expenses 28,800.85 18,831.00 9,069.85 145.7%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 1,050,670.53 633,500.00 417,170.53 165.0%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 38,847.90
8300 - Utilitles Expense
6301 - Electricity 641,653.05 696,500.00 -54,846.95 92.1%
6310 - Natural Gas 6,044.26 10,500.00 -4,455.74 57.6%
6320 - Steam 576,694.05 647,206.00 -70,511.95 89.1%
6340 - Water & Sewer 52,820.03 7,224.00 45,596.03 731.2%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,277,211.39 1,361,430.00 -84,218.61 93.8%
6500 - DID Assessment 50,208.90 28,968.00 21,332.90 173.6%
6600 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00
8000 - Personal Services
§001 - Employee Wages 45,242.01 34,300.00 10,842.01 131.8%
8030 - Empiloyee Benefits 12,433.13 12,292.00 141.13 101.1%
Total 8000 - Personal Services §7,675.14 46,592.00 11,083.14 123.8%
Totat Expense 2,956,327.67 2,401,378.00 554,949.67 123.1%
Net income -1,878,289.62 -1,416,030.00 ~462,209.62 182.6%

-10-



9:40 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

0247 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis July 2008 through January 2007
Jul ‘06 - Jan 07 Jui ‘08 - Jan 08 $ Change % Change
Income
4040 - Private Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4500 - Interest on Investments 561,034.81 378,620.13 182,414.68 48.2%
4640 - Land Lease 88,410.00 92,176.00 -3,766.00 -4.1%
4848 - Parking Revenues 412,273.34 335,145.15 77,128.19 23.0%
4650 - Miscellaneous Revenue 16,370.00 63,161.24 -46,791.24 -74.1%
Totat income 1,078,088.15 869,102.52 208,985.63 24.1%
Expense
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services 23,674.05 34,270.30 -10,596.25 -30.8%
6040 - Legal Services 16,609.82 7,363.60 9,246.22 126.6%
Total 6000 - Professional Services 40,283.87 41,633.90 «1,350.03 3.2%
6060 - Other Contractual Services 5,687.50 0.00 5,687.50 100.0%
6065 - Pedestrian Safety 2483759 24,196.18 641.41 2.7%
6088 - Parking Management 152,655.00 148,153.40 4,501.60 3.0%
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees 9.00 0.00 9.00 100.0%
6020 - Compurter Services 0.00 249.95 -249.95 -100.0%
€030 - Insurance-Property/Liabllity 19,196.86 8.630.00 10,566.86 122.4%
6110 - Meeting Expense 236.48 1,452.44 -1,215.98 -83.7%
6120 - Supplles 4,988.53 1,450.99 3,537.54 243.8%
6140 - Printing and Binding 4,470.00 0.00 4,470.00 100.0%
Total 6100 - Other Suppiles & Expenses 28,900.85 11,783.38 17,117.47 145.3%
6160 - Faclility Repair and Maintenance 0.00 27,306.25 -27,306.25 -100.0%
6200 - Capital Replacement Projects 1,050,670.53 1,231,062.19 -180,391.66 -14.7%
6210 - F&B Repair & Maintenance 38,847.90 0.00 38,847.80 100.0%
8300 - Utilities Expense
6301 - Electricity 641,653.05 612,260.87 29,392.18 4.8%
6310 - Natural Gas 6,044.26 13,443.46 -7,399.20 -55.0%
6320 - Steam 578,694.05 565,276.42 11,417.63 2.0%
6340 - Water & Sewer 52,820.03 62,303.95 -8,483.92 -16.2%
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense 1,277,211.39 1,253,284.70 23,928.69 1.9%
6800 - DID Assessment 50,298.80 0.00 50,208.90 100.0%
6800 - SMG Incentive Fees 229,259.00 194,533.00 34,726.00 17.8%
8000 - Personal Services
8001 - Employee Wages 45,242.01 8,585.55 36,656.46 427.0%
8030 - Employee Benefits 12,433.13 11,221.39 1,211.74 10.8%
Total 8000 - Personal Services §7,676.14 19,808.94 37,8668.20 191.2%
Total Expense 2,956,327.67 2,951,759.94 4567.73 0.2%
Net Income -1,878,239.62 -2,082,667.42 204,417.90 9.8%

-11-



Item IV.b.iii.

Van Andel Arena®/

GMG> DeVos Place

Prlvate Bandyectat far Peble Roctities

Memorandum

To: CAA — Finance Committee
From: Richard MacKeigan — General Manager
Date: Thursday, February 08, 2007

Re: Thomas the Tank Engine show at DeVos Performance Hall

We have been given the opportunity to host a brand new stage show based on the children’s books
and PBS television show Thomas the Tank Engine & Friends. Given the recent creation of the show,
and lack of historical reference for potential ticket sales, the producer of the show is only offering the
show to buildings that are willing to take a risk position on the success/failure of the event. With this
memo, | am requesting CAA approval to book this event with the acknowledgement that risk is
involved.

This event is available to us for a midweek play on either June 19 or 20, 2007 for two performances.
Attached is a pro-forma based on the needed deal points with the producer and estimated expenses
based on both show and theater staffing needs. On a straight rental deal (which would be the
traditional method of booking a family show such as this) the bottom line to the facility would range
between a low of $7,500 to a high of $12,000 for a sold out show. As you can see from the attached,
while there is downside risk, the upside is much greater on a strong selling date.

The producer of Thomas has been in the facility before with Dora the Explorer and this Aprils Go!
Diego! Go! Their products have always been of a very high quality and well received by the ticket
buyers. Booking this event will also help us strengthen our relationship with the producer as a facility
willing to partner and help foster the growth of a show, not just cherry picking and waiting to book
established shows like the previous two mentioned. Ultimately, this should lead to additional bookings
in the future of their touring shows.

In addition to the revenue potential of this particular event, and subsequent future bookings resulting
from a stronger relationship, this will be additional Theater inventory that will be made available to our
Theater premium seat holders. As you probably recall, a commitment of 15 events per year was made
when selling these licenses. This event will not only help getting us to that number, but also help in
being able to offer a more diverse inventory of events.

There is a wise saying in this business that you book with your mind, not your heart. This opportunity
first presented itself this past summer. Chris Machuta ran the numbers that you are looking at now,
and at that time, we were a little hesitant booking this event with a breakeven point of 2,000 paid.

l

VAN ANDEL
ARENA

DEVOSPLACE



Unbeknownst to both of us (both parents of small Thomas fans), we had each respectively purchased
tickets for an event in Flint in which you took a ride on a train being “pulled” by Thomas. While our
tickets were for different days, we discovered the same thing, sold out train rides and a very
enthusiastic support of Thomas that we were not sure existed outside of our respective homes. Our
estimates have it around 5,000 people each day, and our understanding is that they were basically sold
out all 4 days of the event. After witnessing that event first hand, we went from questioning the ability to
get to 2,000 paid to feeling that the number is very attainable.

The revenue potential on this event, coupled with the long term benefit of stronger relationships with
both producer and premium seat holders, | feel that the overall upside of this event offsets the
downside risk of this date. With the potential date being in the middle of June, there is little to no
opportunity cost in booking this event. This will also help fill dates in the otherwise slow period for the
Theater. :

® Page 2



SMG - DeVos Place

Thomas the Tank Engine - Event Proforma

Tuesday, June 19, 2007 - Wednesday, June 20, 2007

Details....

Average Ticket Price
Facility Fee

Merchandise Per Cap
Concessions Per Cap

Per Show Sales

Ticket Sales
Sponsorship
Total Revenue

Show - First $25K
House - Next $35K

Available to Split
Less: Split to Show
Net Split to Building
Total Facility Revenue
Less:

House Expenses
Advertising

Net to Facility

Facility Fee
Merchandise

Concessions

Total Event Revenue

19.35 Estimated Breakeven Point $§ 53,588
2.00 Breakeven Tickets w/ Sponsorship 1,977
3.00 Breakeven Tickets w/o Sponsorship 2,430

© 1.00 ’

500 750 1,000 1,250 1,500 1,750 2,000 2,360
19,350 29,025 38,700 48,375 58,050 67,725 77,400 91,332
10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
29,350 39,025 48,700 58,375 68,050 77,725 87,400 101,332
25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

4,350 14,025 23,700 33,375 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000

- - - - 8,050 17,725 27,400 41,332

- - - - 4,025 8,363 13,700 20,666

- - - - 4,025 8,862 13,700 20,666

4,350 14,025 23,700 33,375 39,025 43,862 48,700 55,666
14,480 14,480 14,480 16,088 16,088 16,088 17,697 17,697
12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500

(22,630) (12,955) (3,280) 4,787 10,437 15,274 18,503 - 25,469

2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,440

450 675 900 1,125 1,350 1,575 1,800 2,124

250 375 500 625 750 875 1,000 1,180

(19,930) (8,905) 2,120 11,537 18,537 24,724 29,303 38,213




VAN ANDEL ARENA

FOOD & BEVERAGE REVENUE & COMMISSIONS
FOR MONTH ENDED JANUARY 31, 2007

MONTH
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

YEAR TO DATE
Concession Events

Gross Concessions Revenue
Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Concessions to Arena

Gross Catering Revenue

Less: Concessionaire Share
Less: Griffins/Rampage Share
Total Net Catering to Arena

Total SMGFB Payment to Arena
Less: Branded Sales Commissions
Net Food & Beverage Revenue

MONTHLY EVENTS - PER CAP COMPARISON

Arenacross

Professional Championship Bullriders ***

Harlem Globetrotters
Jam @ the Van
Griffins Games 23-26

Griffins - Season to Date

January January January
Actual Budget Prior Year
11 : 9 11
260,557 191,500 226,900
(122,462) (90,005) (115,071)
(26,142) (22,000 (30,135)
111,953 79,495 81,694
39,014 36,700 70,905
(31,406) (29,544) (58,771)
(2,919) (3,044) (5,599)
4,689 4,112 - 6,535
116,642 83,607 88,229
(1,902)
114,740 - 83,607 88,229
YTD 2007 YTD 2007 YTD 2007
Actual Budget Prior Year
61 61 66
1,581,105 1,449,000 1,329,196
(743,119) (681,030) (673,047)
(117,394) (143,000) (118,403)
720,592 624,970 537,746
404,761 353,000 323,437
(320,089) (284,170) (268,494)
(17,026) (19,783) (14,617)
67,646 49,047 40,326
788,238 674,017 578,072
(9,863)
778,375 674,017 578,072
Previous Visit Current Year Perccntagc'Change
$4.92 i . $5.39 9.55%
$5.32 $6.31 18.61%
- $3.57 $3.51 -1.68%
$2.39 $2.50 4.60%
$5.25 $5.11 -2.67%
$5.16 $4.99 -3.29%

#%% Arena had not previously hosted the above Bullriders event, previous visit is compared to SMGFB's per cap from tt

September 2006 Professional Bullriders event.

Item IV.b.iv..



Item V

Van Andel Arena®

DeVos Place®

Memorandum

To: CAA Board

From: Richard MacKEIGAN

Date: February 23, 2007

Re: Wine Food and Beer Festival

Last month | presented the board with an opportunity to host a wine, food and beer
festival. The event would be based on similar events held in other communities. Since
last month’s meeting and subsequent media exposure, | have received very favorable
feedback from the general public as well as people within the event's related industries. |
am aware of no negative feedback.

| would like to formally request that the CAA approve this concept. | would aiso request
the CAA approve the following recommendations

1. Establish a reporting protocol to the CAA through the Operations/Marketing
Committee. The Committee would then report on progress to the CAA via our monthly
board meetings.

2. Enter into an agreement with a show producer to partner with our efforts (next two
months). | will work with Dick Wendt as well as the CAA to assure our interests are best
served.

3. Develop a steering committee to assist with the planning of the event (next three
months). The group will be made up of industry related professionals and be approved
by the Operations/Marketing Committee.

| believe this project has immense opportunity for our venue and community. | believe
the actions above will provide the groundwork necessary to maximize this opportunity. |
am available should you have any questions, comments or concems.



LB A,

Ty

turing compani

" L imagin€ ustr
_sector is benefitinig just. from: people going
out:to meals. It has:hada. very significant
‘economic impactand community-impact;”

continuous - product
ting'to:the: growth.
dctis -on, variety'sof
\ts%dire: offerinig: greater
brook- said. “The
haver-creatéﬁgl

Alconol

Continued from page 18
wine and spirits sectors are having a posi-
tive: econormic impact, Irwin said. -

“The growers, winemakers, will benefit
directly.- Consumers will. benefit from
wider choices,”-he added.. “The communi-
ty benefits from growing; their economies.

“Visits by local residents and the. travel-
ing public add a major element to
Michigan travel. Many people come 1o
Michigan to do wine. trail tours. and enjoy
that experience.” : y

Growth will be fueled by the potential

~ from a handful.of new grants from the 21st

Century Job Fund, he said. The grants
would fund the expansion of as many as
nine wineries, breweries and farms,
including, Chateau,©perations in Traverse
g;a;fax;dgm,,Ctder in‘Suttons Bay, Entente
Spirits. in. Baroda and Terrance  Hill
Vineyards, in Watervliet. | 2 wir ... . o
.. “Vodkas are the;hottest:segment of spir-
its, withithe ultra-premium experiencing 7
percent growth,” said Christian Moersch,
general manager :of Entente Spirits, which
requested, an; $82,000 grant for creating
vodka. from, fruit,. Vodka is normally pro-
duced from potatoes, barley, wheat or rye.
1 *People see-this (wine and spirits) is a
legitimate, business. activity, and I've actu-
ally had to turn (investors) away,” Moersch
said. .“Our sales continue to grow at a
steady; rate and, in the last five years, five
new,wineries have opened nearby. We just
opened a second location 20. miles away
near [-:94. un - -
“Everybody’s experiencing around a.10
percent increase in sales.. In the last three
years, we've more than doubled our prof-
its.” . T .

.Other, .grants - range from improving
mechanical vine pruning equipment to
creating;a wine-consulting and grape-pro-
cessing organization. B



Page B4

lineries’ glass is full

STATE COUNCIL WANTS AN ADDITIONAL 10,000 ACRES DEVOTED TO GRAPES

BY CHRIS KILLIAN
PRESS NEWS SERVICE

GANGES TOWNSHIP — Not all
the grapes going into Doug Welsch's
Fenn Valley wines are homegrown.

This year, about 40 percent of his
grapes and juice are coming from out
of state.

1t’s a short-term solution to keep up
with the demand for his wine until
new acreage of grapes on his land and
contracted farms is ready for harvest
in five years.

“I don't have enough money to in-
crease production of the winery and
increase the acres of grapes. Not as
fast as I need to. I've got to do it a
step at a time,” Walsh said.

Other Michigan winemakers find
themselves in the same dilemna.

A state winery council hopes to in-
crease the state’s wine-grape crop by
more than six times its present size,
much of that in southwestern Michi-
gan.

Michigan wines are growing in
popularity, and, in response, officials
in the state’s wine-grape industry set
an ambitious goal to keep up with de-
mand.

The Michigan Grape and Wine In-
dustry Council wants to expand the
state’s wine-grape acreage by 10,000
acres by 2024, Currently, there are
about 1,500 acres devoted to growing
wine grapes — almost half of which
are located in southwestern Michigan.

The area is considered prime ter-
rain for growing wine grapes because
of its proximity to Lake Michigan,
which helps moderate the effect of
weather systems in the region, making
it ripe for expansion.

“I think there is a potential for
more than one-third of the 10,000
acres to be located in Southwest
Michigan,” said Mark Longstroth, dis-
trict extension educator for horticul-
ture and marketing for Michigan State

Robust growth"

Michigan’s grape harvest has
increased the past three years.

Michigan Wine Grape Harvest
Intons

5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

0

2,200

w0
Fmsl deslmyed pan of the ceop

URCE: Michigan Department of Agricultural
Slallsmal Services

04 05

PRESS GRAPHIC/NANCY JONESFRANCIS

PRESS NEWS SERVICE PHOTOS

Keep ‘em coming: Lowell Gray, of Ed Oxley Farms in Lawton, motions to keep dumping Chardonnay grapes from his
truck into the receiving hopper at St. Julian Winery in Paw Paw.

University Extension Office in Van
Buren County and an expert on wine
grapes.

“The area is just really good for
growing wine grapes.” Longstroth
said the new land would be a mix of
existing fruit-tree orchards and land
that hasn’t been cultivated.

Ideal conditions

David Miller is vice president of
winemaking at St. Julian Winery of
Paw Paw and chairman of the Michi-
gan Grape and Wine Industry Coun-
cil’s Research Advisory Committee.
He believes as much as half of the
acreage could be located in south-
western Michigan.

- “Qur area is one of the most unique
spots for growing wine grapes in the
world,” he said.

“We're right there with California,
Oregon and Washington, as well as
New York, when it comes to ideal
places to grow grapes.”

When it comes to expanding wine-
grape acreage in the area, the lake is
not the only asset, Longstroth said.

The many fruit-tree groves in the
southwestern corner of the state eas-
ily can be transformed from growing
fruit such as cherries and peaches to
growing wine grapes.

That’s because the growers already
know how to grow high-quality fruit
and have the tools and machinery
necessary for tending and harvesting
fruit, Longstroth said.

“There is a big advantage for those

already growing high-quality fruit,” he
said. “That’s what winemakers are
going to want.

“Now, we need to get people inter-
ested in growing wine grapes.”

Getting started is not inexpensive,
however.

Initial costs are $8,000 to $12,000
per acre for the plants, trellises and
wires, Longstroth said. And don't ex-
pect grapes to be harvested at the end
of the first growing season, because it
takes at least three years to begin har-
vesting. Full production takes four to
five years.

But the returns, much like a nice-
lyaged wine, can be delicious. Two
kinds of wine grapes grow in South-
west Michigan: the European wine
grape and the French-hybrid wine
grape.

At full production, a vineyard can
produce 1 to 2 tons of the European
variety per acre and 6 tons per acre of
the French-hybrid variety.

Still, Longstroth has some advice
for those considering getting in on
wine-grape growing.

“Don’t plant until you know where
you are going to sell them,” he said.
“This is a big investment at first, and
you will have to be patient while wait-
ing for the returns.”

Michigan wine sales are growing an
average of 9 percent per year. Cur-
rently, 45 commercial wineries oper-
ate in the state.

— Press staff reporter Shandra
Martinez contributed to this report.

THE lIST

: Gomg W|th the flow

Here Is a list of Southwestern
Michigan wineries:

= Contessa Wine Cellars, Coloma, :
(269) 468-5534 - -
contessawinecellars.com.

= Domaine Berrien Ceflars, Berrien
Springs, (269) 473-9463
domaineberrien.com

» Fenn Valley Vineyards, Fennville,
(269) 561-2396 fennvalley.com

.= Free Run Cellars, Berrien Springs, . .
(269) 471-1737 freeruncellars.com .\

= Hickory Creek Wmery, Baroda,
(269) 422-1100

WWW. hlckorycreekwmery.com

= Karma Vista Vineyards, Coloma,
(269) 468-9463 karmavista.com

» Lemon Creek Winery, Berrien
Springs (269) 471-1321
lemoncreekwinery.com

= Round Barn Winery and Dlstlllery,
Baroda (800) 716-9463
roundbarnwinery.com

= St. Julian Wine Company, Paw Paw,
(269) 657-5568 or (800) 732-6002
stjulian.com

» Tabor Hill Winery & Restaurant,
Buchanan (800) 283-3363
taborhill.com

» Warner Vineyards, Paw Paw (800)
756-5357 warnerwines.com

= Wyncroft Winery, Buchanan (269)
695-8000




VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Ttem VI
(Revised)
DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Tue, Feb 20 Josh Groban GC | CHRIS | Arena 7:00 PM Doors
8:10P-8:40P Angelique Kidjo
8:40P-9:10P Intermission
9:10P-10:45P | Josh Groban
10:30 PM Load-out
DR Banquet B/C TA-9:30P Backstage catering
Wed, Feb 21 | Griffins vs Syracuse GC | LYNNE | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Rampage DR Banquet B
Stadivm Savers DR Banquet C 5:30P-7P Banquet
Humana Market Point DR Banquet D 5:30P-7P Banquet
Thur, Feb 22 | John Mayer GC | CHRIS | Arena 7:00 AM Dega pick-up at AGPH
8:30 AM Floor marking
9:00 AM Load-i
2:00 PM Floor set
4:00 PM Sound check party (100 fan club)
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-8:15P Matt Kearny
8:15P-8:45P Intermission
8:45P-10:15P | John Mayer
10:00 PM Load-out
DR Banquet B/C/D 7A-9:30P Backstage catering
Fri, Feb 23 Available
Sat, Feb 24 Griffins vs Hamilton GC | CHRIS | Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
12:30 PM Doors
1:30P-2:45P Youth hockey game
3:30P-4:30P Youth hockey game
4:30P-5:20P Youth hockey game
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game autographs
10P-10:30P Post-game skate
Sun, Feb 25 Griffins vs Hamilton GC | 1M Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
TP-9:30P Hockey game
Mon, Feb 26 | SMG Arena 8A-5P Ice maintenance
Tue, Feb 27 SMG Arena 8A-5P Ice maintenance
Wed, Feb 28 | Disney on Ice Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
Thur, Mar 1 Disney on Ice GC Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Fri, Mar 2 Disney on Ice GC Arena 10:30 PM Performance
7:00 PM Performance
Sat, Mar 3 Disney on Ice Arena 11:00 AM Performance
3:00PM Performance
7:00 PM Performance
Sun, Mar 4 Disney on Ice GC Arena 2:00 PM Performance
Mon, Mar5 | Available
Tue, Mar 6 Griffins vs Peoria GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Make-up hockey game (2/3)
Wed, Mar7 | Available




Thur, Mar8 | Rampage vs Las Vegas GC Arena 9:00 AM Team practice
10:00 AM Visiting team practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Rampage home season opener
10P-10:30P Post-game autographs
Fri, Mar 9 Freestyle Motocross GC Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance
Sat, Mar 10 Freestyle Motocross GC Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30 PM Performance
Sun, Mar 11 | Available
Mon, Mar 12 | Available
Tue, Mar 13 | Available
Wed, Mar 14 | Griffins vs Iowa GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Thur, Mar 15 | Rampage vs Philadelphia GC Arena 9:00 AM Team practice
10:00 AM Visiting team practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Football game
10P-10:30P Post-game autographs
Fri, Mar 16 Griffins vs Manitoba GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
TP-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game autographs
Sat, Mar 17 Griffins vs Manitoba GC Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:00 PM Doors
TP-9:30P Hockey game
9:30P-10P Post-game skate
Sun, Mar 18 | Stars on Ice GC Arena 3:00 PM Doors
4:00 PM Performance
AC Banquet B 3P-4P Meet-N-Greet
AC Banquet C/D 6:30A-6:30P | Backstage catering




389( 80H

soM 0 0 ol w1 ONLLATN WA9-NVS WOOR@IVOd NOLLVIORIOD YOOLLTV
NOFHONT1
¥3o(] 1504 0 0 0] Wi dnias NJO1-Nd9 a0 VLINFD FOUNOSTY 8.NTNOM
Wd0E9-NdT TYSUVAHTY Wd9-WNdOE:€
asi 0 0 0{ v NI FAONW WAI-NVS Ad A TVOISSV'1D -OS¥D
SWO0Y 1NONVAYE VD
LIGHXA VHi AIv4 F0FTIO0 ONINAS OVOVN £00T | 9 HOUVIN 'SANL
yso(] 1504 SuON ouoN suoN | WX HONNY1 WdAsS-IWNV6 a-oTIvd |  NOFHONNT ¥O O €10 JINONOOA
dOE01~d0E9
dog:01-d9 Ivoot 1N0 FAON WVZI-Wdol
HO4d 1 XiLo FONVINIOIIAd WdO01-Nd6
di1-dog:z doE:01-dL dOg:01-d9 AIAdAN TVSIVAHT Wdsyi9-Wds
asi OLIIVIL L INEZ SV SYaHsn | v NI JAON Wds-NV6 Ad ISVOMOHS F0TTI00 AdOH
WdS TLINN
NsAA LSOH 0 0 0] 3 NOLLJIZOTd Wdsy:L-WNdOE9 gV o NOLLJZoTY 303 TI00 Ad0H
EPM TN oUON owoN | (W | SWOOY LnodvVaId wdyy — weg vVOod MOHS AAVEL % NOLLNIANOO VAN
HVO
uop SWyeIL 11 0 0 0] o INOFAON | Wd00:L - INVOO:L IV D OV Hi NACIVO % TNOH IN 1sAM | S HOUVIN 'NOW
I1NO-AAON
Lidmxd oV TIVE
NOISSES TVIINED aTvd
NOLLVY1SION LONNJ-IId TIVE
1wons U0k SWOOY LNOYVIId a-d NOW
WM SUON SUoN woN | (W | SWOOY LNONVRIE wdpo:L — WeOE:L iv oy MOHS FAVUL ¥ NOLLNIANOO VAN
THERDAD 1
pIURY MOYS 6 Joureoy | Jomasedng |
jonuoD smges]. 7 | dOE:9- VOE:0l SIONEL 9WIL § 1n0avotl HVO
el 01 | d00:9-VOO'I1 INAZ POEDr | OF MOHS | Wd00:9 - NV00:11 ‘4VDOVHI NAQIVO ¥ INOH IN 1S3M | ¥ HOUVIN 'NNS
LIgIHXA oV TIva
NOISSES TVHANID aTivd
© NOLLVYLSIONY JONNI-THd TIvE
SWOOY LnoNVAId TIVH TVLION
sPeM SUON SUON ouoN | (N | SWOOY LOodvAig wdg —ug 4V Od MOHS FAVIL ¥ NOLLNAANOD VAN
TWEWBAQ | oy | Josazdng | SWOOY LNONVEId SWO0Y 20O
pIEnO MOS 6 omgesL 7 | d00:01- VOE:6 SINBL PHHL § HVO
uHo) SRIL] | JOE:6- VOO-01 LN Z PO ®reoz | od MOHS | WJ0€:6 — NV00:01 4V D OV HA NACIVO ¥ ANOH DN 1S3M | € HONVI 'LVS
LIgTHXA oV TIVe
NOISs3s doy —-dg aTivd
NOLLVULSIOT JONNA“dd TIve
woAj | SO0V Lnoyvaid TIVH TVLION
ysjom | SuoN SUON suwoN | N dn 13s wd 9 —uweg Vol MOHS FAVYL ¥ NOLLNIANOD VIN
TREBRRAD 1 B0y | 40001 JosiAsdng |
PIENY MOYS 8 oIl 7 - VOE 11 SINBL 19WOIL § HVO
wquo) PRIL] | dOEi6- J00-T1 INaZ B»O DT | Od MOHS | WJOE:6 — Nd00:Z1 ‘v OOV HY NAQUVO ¥ INOH IN LSAM T HOUVIN T4
NOLLVIOAYddV INATTO
WIoM 1 SuoN ouON awoN | YINNIA doy - dg WOOd@IvOod SALVIOOSSY ¥ ‘AANAD ‘VALSO4
dn 138 TIVH Tv.LIoad
M 1 NOLLVYLSIOR JONNJA-Tdd TIVE
ypo( BoAT | otoN ouoN owoN | [N an 1as wdp(- weg a-v Tive MOHS JAVHL 2 NOLLNAANOD VAN
TRBRBAG 1
pIEnD Moyg § soureoy | Josjasdng |
jono) gLz | d00:01-dOET SNEL, WL § HVO
JmeiLs | dOE6- dO0'E INA T BPIWDZ | od N3dO MOHS WJOE'6 — INdE 4V D OV HA NAGHVO » TWOH IN L8IM | 1 HOIVIN ¥NHL
3i1nlossy 391104 S.LW3 43vis 3SnoH | 93 NOLLONNS INLL WOOY AN3A3 31va

L00C HOYVW




Tremny 7 WOOU Lnoyvaid gvo
sowreoy WOO¥ Lnoyvaia Vo
§8o(] 180H 0 0 Spoyd o) | WY | NOISSHS TVIANID WJ00'-INV00:L a-0 Tivd NOLLVIOOSSY ONIGVAY NVOIHOIN
I1BH nqwxe wdog:s
LIED pUBID | AABOE:6 wd)g:L-Uwoci6
%oo() 1N 1 0 SINAZ soNe PWRLZ | O LigmHXd | W400:8 — WV00:01 gV Ha Odxd S.NINOM NVOIHODN L83M | 01 HOUVI 'LVS
401110
FOVHOLS AVATIV |  MOHS YIVMANS NVSMOHS
)
puRIp 0 0 0] D¥ ONLLATN | WJ00's — INVOES H-DOD ONLLATN DOOTITH
ONILAAN | V0D TI-NV00'8 v OD ONLIATN S HIOVNVYIN ALID
WdOE:01-NdOE:9
Wd1T-WdOE:9 Wdog:o1 NdOE:01 IVoo?T
HOd | -NdL “NdOg:9 XiLo9 FONVINIOSIIAd WdOT-Wd8 Ad
asi OIAIVYL T INAT SAFHSN9 | AV Lvagdn WAOEL-NdL TIVH TV.LIOAY HA TVIISSVIO-OSHD
PR eaped dNLAsS aoTive
spPM dnias g-v TIvd
WIjED PURID | TvAN V LON JONNI-Tdd TIVe
"AS| TB103] | NOLLVYLSIOTI JONNI-Tdd D HA
$od IN Z 0 0 pPsomo) | W dniis WJ00:9-NV00:L _oHd NOLLVIOOSSY ONIAVAY NVOIHOIN
389 150H 1 HONIY1 q7TIve
2B0D SO | WOO¥ LNnoAvIdd Woodmivod
»op WOOd Lnoyvays Fvou
ulpeo] UOAT | 0 0 o] 18 LISTHXE | Wd6s:11 ~ NV00'8 a0 TIve ONI dO1S ANO
TIeH Hqigxe wdos:3
KRfeD pUwIp | “eOE:6 wdpg:L-wepE:6
Yo IN | 0 SLNA T e piLz | O LIGIHXE | Wd00:8 — NV00:01 g-v HA OdXd 8.NINOM NVOIHOIN LSAM 6 HOUVIN ‘R
FI1410
AOVIOLS AVATIV |  MOHS YIVMANS NVdSMOHS
W53 190H
oM 0 0 0] W ONILFAW |  INdO00:ZTI-NV00'8 Wooyqivod NOLLVIOJdI0D YOOLLTV
18OH/AS(BD
puRID) 0 0 o] o ONLLAIN | Wd00's — WVOE:9 H-D0D ONLLIAN HDOOTITA
NdOE01-Wd9 AQ
asi 0 0 0] NV TYSUVAHTYE | WNJOE'0T-WdOEL HA TVOISSVIO-OS4D
A3opeD puelp
o IN 2 0 0 ol wd dn 1L3s Wd00-8- V008 OHA NOLLVIOOSSV ONIAVA NVDIHOIN
dn 13s a-d Tve ONI dOLS ANO
B[eD PUBID |
ood IN T 0 0 0{ O¥ dnlas | Wdoo'8 - WNV00'8 -V Ha OdXd S.NTINOM NVDIHOIN LsAM | 8 HOUVN INHL
ERIEED)
AOVIOLS AVATIV | MOHS YIVMAMS NVJSMOHS
33 190H
oM 0 0 o] wd ONLLAIN Wd9"INVS 4-30d NOLLVIOJIO00 ¥OOLLTY
WOH/AJIED
puRlp) 0 0 ol ou ONLLAIN | INd00's ~ NVOE'9 H-DOD ONLLIIN DDOTIAN
¥ea(] 180H o HONNT Nd00'S-NV00:8 AV 0D NOFHONNYT
EOM 0 0 ol Ay NOLLIAOAY WJ00: 1-NV00:S WoOodqavod WALNFD ZDUNOST 8.NIWNOM
NJOE01-WNdT TVSAVAHAY WAOT-WNdOE L
asi 0 0 ol v TVSEVEHEY WA9"NJOEE AQ IIA TVOISSVIOOSND
}po( UoA'] sLNoAVANd | W65 11-NV00'8 v ol STALRIMYAANN
EOM 0 0 0o} OF LA | Wd6s 1I-NV00'8 oV TIve HLTVAH 4O "DOSSV HOIW ‘M | L HONVI 'dam
401410 -
ADOVHOLS AVATIV | MOHS YIVMAYS NVISMOHS
3ilnijosev 39110d S.LAN3 ddvis 3snoH | 93 NOILLONNS EL T Wood AN3A3 31va

2002 HOXVIN




TVSIVAHAS Ad SONIHL ATIM FHL TITHM
Kiafep pueip
opeAje wiBlosd
1A} 00jAISS HVO dAd LV MOHS
spaens yooq 9 SUON SuoN ouoN | [N NI JAOW uxdp| — wey g 4V D OV HY TEAVYUL 2 AY *ONIHSII ‘LIOdS 4D | +1 HOUVN Qam
WJOI-Nd9
OLVMAYIA 1
WA 1-Wds TVSEVAHAS WdOI-WNdL LATIVE -SYTIOVLI/TIvV
asi 0 0 0| dv $300 LHOIT W-HVS Ad SONIHL TIM AHI THTHM
_ €1 HOUVIN 301
401410
FOVIOLS AVATIV | MOHS YTVMANS . NVJSMOHS
WAT1-Wds TVSIVAHAY WdoI-WdL LATIVE -S43 /Y
asi 0 0 0] AV NI JAON WJ-INVE 300d NOATAQ SONIHL OTIM FHI FITHM
WOOY LNoYvAdE HVO
WOOY 1LnovaId 4V Ood
LIGTHXA OHA
P NOLLVELSIONY LONNJ-TUd HE
o) Speg TVAN V LON JONNJ-TId TIVE
ey 7 WOOY Lnoyvaid Woodaavod
sunoy NOISSAS TVUANID g-v TIvd
N80(] 150H WOO0Y 1No¥vIId gvo
B | WOOY LNOYVRIE ivo
¥oq IN 0 0 UopoRo oy | Wi | NOISSdS TVHINID WJ00:9-INV00:L a- O TIve NOLLVIJOSSY ONIAVAY NVOIHIIW | Z1 HOUVIN NOW
ERIEED)
FOVHOLS AvATIV |  MOHS YIVMAMS NVISMOHS
LATIVE -SEDIOF L/TAV
0 0 0 0} v NI FJAON Wd9 - NVS J¥00d NOATAQ SONIHL CTIM FHI THTHM
WOOY 1Noyvaid HVO
WOoO0d Lnoyvaid v od
LigiHX3 OHA
NOLLVYLSION JONNA-AId HA
TVAN Y LON JONNA-Tdd TIVE
WM WOO¥ LNOoXVAId Woodaavod
wpot) efpeg NOISSAS TVUANED €g-V TIve
ety 7 WOOY 1no¥vaud avo
ooy WOOY LNOoAVANd Vo
Nea(] 350 0 0 LopXOwo) | WM | NOISSHS TVHANAD NNV O00:L a-o TIvd NOLLVIOOSSV ONIAVIY NVOIHOIA
TTeH Qe
RifeD pUBID | wdog:g
"AS] MB12ag | -umpg:o] | wdog:t-wreogiol 1noavol | wdoos-— Wdoo:s
o IN Z 0 SING T somPPlLz | Od LIGIHXE | Wd0o's — WV00:11 g-V Ha OdXd S.NTNOM NVOIHOIN LSAM | 11 HOIVIN 'NNS
401440
FOVIOLS AVATIV | MOHS YIVMANS NVISMOHS
WJOE01-Nd0E:9
NdT1-WNdO0E:9 WNdOE:01 Wdog:01 VoD T 100 JAON WVZ1 - WNdo1
HOA 1 -WdL “WdoE9 X119 FONVINIOIIAd WdOoT-WNds Ad
ast OLIAVHLZ INAZ SYaHSNY9 | MV Lvagdn WNJOE:L-WdL TIVH TV.LIOMS HA TVOISSVI0-0830
WOOW LNodvaad HVO
WOOY LnoXvaid iV oud
LIGIHXA OHA
NOLLVULSION JONNA-F8d HA
TVAN V LON JLONNA-TId TIVE
EPM WOOY LnoYvaud Woodaqavod
oty o8peg NOISSAS TVYANED gV TIve
31n108s8vY 30110d SJINI 44viS ISNOH | 93 NOILONNA INIL WooN IN3A3 3iva

L00C HOYVW




“WVOE0T | WAOE+Wdl “WdOE:TH aaddaN 100 FAON Wds-Nd¥ J00G NOAVAd LATIVE -SEDIOT/AdY
asi DLAVELZ IWNAZ SV SUIHSN | AV FONVINIOIIAd War-Wd00:2 Ad SONIHI TN THL TITHM
RASIS SOJAIDS
opasis mBios]
Jostasadng § 00:9 - 00'6 00:9 - 00:6
Temosid ¢ waogm() § Josjasadng |
ARyED T joamo) 00'9— 006 8398} 391, b MO-0AOW wdp] - wdy HVO dAd 1V MOHS
pIenp Yood 9 SguiL T SINEZ poprod { M MOHS widg — ureqy IV D OV HE TAAVEL ® AY ‘ONIHSII ‘1¥0dS ¥D | 81 HOUVIN 'NNS
355 9H 1 DNINIVIL FAISNALINT YAaviL
) OO | 0 0 o]l 18 ONLLAIN WAOO-L-WVO00:L -9 NOW AV.LS — NOLLYONAGHA AINLIHM
IdOT-WdOEZ1
Agg011
WdOT-Wd9 WAOT-WNd9 ®
¥ NdoEY WdOE - WNdOETI
“WdOE:ZH Wdo1 WAOT-Nd9 IVoo?
OLVMTYIA 1 - NdoE:9 ¥ 2 WAOEP X119
JU-NVOE0T | INdOEt-INdT “NdOE:TI aagaan AONVIIOIIAd WA0E:6-WNdOE:L 1ATIVE -SYTIOT L/3Y
ast OlIVELT INAZ SV SYgHsn | AV FONVINIOIIAd WdP-INd00:T Ad SONIHL GTIM FHL TYTHM
100avO1 | Wd00:9 - Wdoo'l
AqqoT ysOM LIGHXA | Wd00'1 ~ INV00:6 awv Tive ONLLATN TVNNNV
() woq woAg 0 0 ol ou ONLLAAN | Wd00:T1 — NV00'8 IVOd | 'NSSV 3FHOVAL ZONFIOS NVOIHOIN
00°6 — 00°6 00°6 - 00°6
sosamdng | uuoym) | sosiasedng |
fremany ¢ ofuo) 00'6 - 00:6 198} WL b HVO dAd IV MOHS
Anpep 2 ongesL T SLNA T yogprodz | (N MOHS IV D OV HE TAAVEL ¥ AY ‘ONIHSII ‘13048 4O | L1 HOUVIA 'LVS
353 350H | ONINIVUL AAISNALNI YAQVIL
BNE SO | 0 0 ol 18 ONILAAW | WVO00:ZI-WNVO0:L a-d NOW YV.LS -~ NOLLVONAA AINLIHM
WdOT-Nd9
Agdo11 WAOT-Nd9
WAOI-Wd9 IVooT
DLVATIIA | Wdot XiL9
WAIT-Wdy - NdOE:9 WJOT-WdS aaaaan TVSIVEHR NdOT-WdL LATIVE -SUTIONL/AIv
asi OIAIVHL 2 INAZ Sy SudHsN | v S3NO LHOIT Wd9-NVS Ad SONIHL OTIM THL TITHM
LIgIHXd | WNd0E's - NV00'6 a-v Tive DNILFFN TVNINNV
Aqqo] WM 0 0 0| ou ONLLIINW | WdSI:¥ — AV00'8 Ivod | 'NSSV JFHOVAL HONAIDS NVOIHOIN
0€:01 - 0£:01 0£:01 — 0€:01
Josiazdng | nuopun | udog:01 Jostasadng |
Temasty onuo) -06T SIONRY N, b HVO dAd LV MOHS
AnjEp ¢ ogesy ¢ SLWNA T Yooyoreon 7 | N MOHS wdgy — ursg IV D OV HE TAAVYL P AY ‘ONIHSH ‘LHOdS ¥0 | 91 HOUVIN Tid
389 #0H { DNINIV AL FAISNZLNI ¥3aVil
BNE) 0SB0 0 0 o} 18 ONLLFIN | WVO0-TI-NVO0:L a-g NOW AV.LS -~ NOLLVONAA AINLIHM
WJOT-Nd9
OLVMAYIA 1
WATI-WdS TVSAVAHTI WAOT-WdL LITIVE -SUTIOrLy/adv
ast 0 0 o] v $AND LHOT1 Nd9-NVS Ad SONIHL Q'TIM FHL TYHHM
NOLLITOAYE | Nd00°6 ~ Wd00'L
Aqqo] gEloM dnias | wWdoo:o-Wdoo:T1 a-v TIvd ONILIFN TVANNV
(2) o wokg 0 0 0f ou ONLLITN Wd00's-NVO'8 IvO¥ | 'NSSV ¥AHOVIL FONAIOS NVOIHOIN
“Iosamdng 1 | Of - wdog:T wdp] — wdpE'L
Tremasty ¢ g | wdpt Jostaadng |
Aoqep 7 jonmo) - udpg:Z 1940 PWOLL & HVO dAd 1V MOHS
PEnY Y00Q 9 oL ¢ SLNAZ »aprodz | M MOHS wdpy - weg 4V D OV HY TIAVIL ¥ A¥ ‘ONIHSH ‘LHOdS ¥D |  §1 HOUVIN HHL
NOLLIZOTd ONNA-d V TIvE ) - — HIMOUD
WANNIA v TIve ALVIOJHOO HO4 NOLLVIDOSSY
1ATIVE -SYDIOTLI/AV
31niossvy 3010d S.LN3 344v1S 3SNOH | 93 NOLLONNS INIL NOOoY IN3A3 31va

002 HOYVIN




(7) w0k 0 0 0] o¥ dnias W00~ INV00:8 aTivd MOHS TTIHONMONS
3¥8o(] 180H | 0 0 0| 18 ONLLAAN | WJ00:ZT1 — NV00'8 VO WSINAWNOA Y04 YZLNTD VIV ¥D
yood IN SUON SUON owoN | [N dnias wd 6 - weg 4 Ha JTHSNOIJIWVHO O RIOM Vid
WAOE:01
“WNdOE:9 dO€:01-d0E'9
HO4 1 IVOD?
Nd11-NV8 dogior-dL | dOE:01-doE9 XIL9 FONVINIOIIAd WJ0T-Nd8
asi JIAIVHLZ INAT SYAHSNZI | NV SNOLLIANV WdS-NV6 Ad A 840d-OSHD
AONTIFZINOD
NOISSAS TVHANAD | WVOE01-NVOE9S a-v TIve JIHSYAAVIT ALV.LS TVANNY Vdd | €T HOIVIN T4
¥83(1 150H
oM 0 0 0] ¥4 ONLLATN WN00:9-NV 008 WOOIMIvVod OORNYAd
o N SUON suoN suoN | (W dnias widg — weg € HA JIHSNOIIWVHO ATHOM VEd
0 0 0 0] v ONILIAN Wd9-Wdy TIVH TV.LIO3 ONLLIAN qUVOd OSHO
HV 00D
359 150 | 0 0 0] 18| NOISSASIVHANAO | Wd00:L - NV00'S 440D SNVE FTIVSV'T
NdOE:0T-NdE TYSYVAHTS WAOT-WdL
asi 0 0 0} v NI JAON WdT-NVS Ad A Sd0d-OS¥D
BPM
Asireo uON 9WON woN | (N YANNIA wdpy — wdg vV IIve T1vd HSIM
ysioM
#BAR[F 20IAIOS
yeo( BOH ASVOMOHS
Smpeo] uok] 0 0 0] W LIgHXA | AWV00:ZI-NV00'S g TIve SSANISNE FONAIOS AAIT-ASAD | TZ HOUVIN YHL
NOLLJZOT V NOW NOLLIZORY YV
9PM 0 0 0] W ONLLAEN Wd00:9-NV00'8 woouqivod o0DNNAd
3oq IN uON SUON ouoN | I dnLas wdg — ureg g HA JIHSNOIJNVHO ATIOM Vad
d01-d9
HO4? WdO01-Nd9
VZIVL VOO Z WVZI-WIOE6 NO0d NOATAQ
H00a 1 | WAOI-NdOE9 WAOI-Nd9 XiL9o WNJOE:6-NJOE L AQ
asi OLIAVYL T INI T sYaHSNZI | MV FONVINIOLIHAd Wd-NVS JO0d NOATAQ OND 89
TEPM .
U0A] suoN SuoN awoN | (W uj A0 wdg — wwg v TIvV] TIVE HSIM
¥soq BoH { gV 0D
paenp SINOOY LNONVEYE Vo NOLLNFANOO
RI[ED pULsO | 0 0 o] 18 ONLLAAW | WJ00's ~ V008 V HA | TVANNV YALVM ANNOYO NVOIHOIN | 12 HOUVIA daM |
ONLLAAN WA00'E-NV00:8 WOOIqIvVOd ONLLIFW AIVOd 8AD
383 150H |
prenp WOOU LNoYvadd Vo NOLLNFANOD
w{feD pURp | 0 0 0o{ 178 ONLLIAW | Wd6s: 11-IWV00:8 Vv HE | TVONNV HLIVAM ANQOYO NVOIHOIN | 02 HOUVIN 0L
dAd LV MOHS
yod ¢ SuON SuON suoN | N 100 JAON §-e8 AV OOV HI TAAVYEL ¥ AY¥ ‘ONIHSLE ‘LHOdS 4D | 61 HOUVIN NOW
WAOEF
-NdOE:TT
AGHOT1
Wdog
“Wdog:21 WAOE - NdOE:TT
DILVMTAI 1 IVOO T
WAOEY WA+ XI1L9
31N10S8Y 301710d S..N3 43vLiS 3SNOH | 93 NOILONNS I WOooY IN3A3 31va

2002 HOYVIW



WANNIA €V TIve
s1noNvadd v ou
sLOONVAdd HV 0D
s1noNvAyd Wd00:5-IWV00:S Woouqivod "ONI ‘STIVM-OLOV
WOOY 1No3vVIId 474 00D
WooH Lnoyvaig a-5 000
WOO¥ LNo¥vAId 8V 00D
WOO¥ LnoYvadd 3309
WOO¥ LnoyvIid a0 oo
Svaid gV 00
LgHxa OH3 NTITHHD
389 150H WOOW LnoyvAid HO 0DD ONNOX 4O NOLLVONAT FHL
oM 0 0 0] W | NoIissEs IVHINID WJ00:8-NV00:8 a-d1ve WO "ISSV IN "ANOO TVANNY L00Z
WAOE:01
“WNdOE:S
ast 0 0 0] v TVSAVAHAY NJOI-WdL Ad A TVOISSVIO-OS¥D
NMOMIVAL | Wd00:01-Wd10'€E gV Hi
LIGTHX3 Wd00:€-NV00:8 €V H3
ONLLAAN |  WdO00-ZI-NV00:'S VTIVE | STIOLS FONTINFANOO IW/ONLAd DY | 62 HOUVIN ¥HL
590 ¥oH NTITTIHO
AsTq m8ieag | dnLas |  Wd6s:11-Ndoo's a-daTive ONNOA 40 NOLLVONAA AHL
000 IN € 0 0 0] W dnias | Wdes:11-Wvo0:8 JHA WO ‘OSSV IN "ANOO TVANNV L00T
NJOE0T-IdT TVSUVARTI WA0T-INdOE L
asi 0 0 0] v TVSHVAHTE WdO-WdOEE Ad HIA TVOISSVIO-OSHO
LIGTHXA Wd00:6-Wd00'S gV H3
ONLLIAN W400:$-INV00:8 aTive
_dnL3s W65 V008 gVHI | SAUOLS AONTINFANOD IW/OULId IN | 82 HOUVIN daAM
WJOE:9-NdZ TVSIVAHTY Wd9-WdOE'S
ast 0 0 0] v NI JAON WJI-AVS Ad A TVOISSV'ID -OS¥D
dn 138 gV Ha
ONLLAFN WA00'S"NV00'S a0 TIvd | STIOLS ZONFINAANOO IWOULAd IN | LT HOUVN ANl
oq TN SUON SUoN suoN | (W NMOMIVEL wdg — ey g H3 JTHSNOIJWVHO GTHOM VEd | 92 HOUVIN NOW
Aopren otoN suoN ouoN | (I 1svDlvadd Wd00:s- V008 vV DO HONNYA dIA 8. ANNAA
ARED 7
My ¢ L4411 dg 411 —wmdg L1 —wdg MOHS wdy p-wudg
pod TN sngel], ¢ INE T WPPILE | N dNias wdg — weg g H3 JIHSNOIJWVHO O TIOM Vad
WAOE'S
“WNdOE: T d0€:§-dOE:1
HO4 1 IVOO?
WNdo-WdoE:T dogis-dz | dogis-dog:1 XIL9 1N0 IAON Wd8-Wds
asi olaviELE | ¢ INET SYAHSNZI | XV FONVINHOLIAd Wds-INdE Ad A SdOd-OSUD
FONTIAINOOD
NOISSES TVIANTD WJ00:£- V008 a-v 1TIve JdIHSIAAVAT ALV.LS TVANNV Vdd | 7 HOUVIN 'NNS
Sod N suoN suoN suoN | W | NOISSAS TVIANID wdg — weg g H3 JIHSNOIJWNVHO QTIOM Vid
dOE:01
“NdOE:9 dO£:01-d0E:9
HOd 1 Voo ?
AVZI-INdOE:9 doccor-dL | docror-doco XiL9 NOLLJZOTY WVZI-WNdOT
ast LLIVYL T INAT SYAHSNZI | AV AONVINIOLINAd WdO01-INd8 Ad A 8d0d-OS¥D
NOLLIEOad | Wd6s T1-Nd10°6
WANNIA Wdo0'6Nd10'€ FONTIZINOD
NOISSAS ‘TVHANID WNJ00:€-NV00:8 a-v TIve JTHSYAAVAT ALVLS TVANNV Vdd | 2 HOUVIN 'LVS
NMOGUVAL | WV00:ZI-Wd00:6
£qq07 gsom LIGHXA W00 3-NJ00
31N10S8Y 301104 S.LN3 343vis 3SNOH | 93 NOILONNS 3NIL WooY IN3A3 31va

00T HOXVIN




WOOY LNoXvRId WNd00:$ -V 00'8 3000
NOOY LNOMVIYY Nd00:¢-NV00:8 a--o0oo
NOOY LNOoNvVAId Nd00:$-NV00:8 g-v oob
NOOY LNONVI¥H Nd00-$ “NV00:8 440D
HWOOY LNOXvVayd Nd00:$-INV00'3 a-0ob
sty Avayd Wd00:$-NV00-8 av oo
Jomeoy NOISSES TVIINID Nd00-$-NV00:8 a-dTivd NAIIATHO
BO0H LIGIHXA Wd00:$-NV00:3 OHHA ONIOA 40 NOLLVONAd FHL
e 0 0 04 Wi WOOY LNOAVIEL Nd00:$-INV00'8 HD 0DD 04 D88V IN "INOO TVANNYV L0027
NAOE:01-Nd0E*9
WNJT1-NdOE-9 NdOE:01 Ndoe:0t VOO T 100 FIAON WVZI - ot
HOA1 ~NdL “Ndot-9 X119 FONVINHOLIEd Ndoi-Nd8 Ad
asi OLIAVYL T INA T SYAHSN9 | MV LVEddN NdOE-LNdL TIVH TV.LIOAY HIA TVIISSVIO-OSHD
A BOH |
B0 SOMORY | 0 0 0 18 ONLLIAN | WSt 11— NV00'8 a-v NOW VORIANIEd | 1€ HOUVIN LVS
B 10H [
BN S0IWON § 0 0 0 18 ONLLAAN { WdSH11 - NV00:8 a-v NON VORIINRd
WOOY 1nodvaud H-D 00D
LIFIHXA OHH
NOISSAS TVIAND a-gTive
Avaada gv oD
NOOY LNOAVIIH aoob
feasry WOOY LNoMvIId 340D
uweoy NOOY LNnoxvaud q-v 00b NAIATHD
s2Q BOH NOOY LnodvIdd a-oo0oo ONNOA 4O NOLLYONAHA THL
Yoo 0 0 0] W™ WOOY LoV NJ00:8-NV00:8 J-40DD Y04 "DSSV IN INOO TVANNY L00T
WdOE:01-INdOE:9
WATT-WdoE"9 Ndote-01 Wdog01 IVoO?7
HOA 1 -NdL “ndot-9 XiL9 JONVINIOLIIAd Nd01-Nd8 Ad
asi OIVYIL T INIT SYAHSNY | MV Lvagdn NdOE-L-NdL TIVH TV.LIO HIA TVOISSVIO-OSdD
NMO@IVIL Nd00-TI-NV00:8 gV HE | STI0LS FONTINFANOO IN/OULAd TN 0€ HOUVIN Tid
SLAONVIId Jv 0D
JLIHIHXA OHd
OZE.ImlmE a-0 TIve
alniosasy 30170d S.LN3 44vis 3SNOH | 93 NOLLONNS 3NIL WNOOoY 1N3A3 31va

1002 HOYVW




